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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Directors” raport
31 December 2015

The Directors prasent thelr report together with the financial statements of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
(the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the auditors raport therson.

Directors
The following persons were directors of the Company at any time during the financial year and up o the date of
this report; .

JoAnne Marea Stephenson (Chairman)
Duncan Gerald West

Rachel Emma Cobh

Anna Elizabeth Gladman

Christopher Paul Knoblanche

Princlpal activities

The principal actlvity of the Company during the year was that of a life insurer, operating both in Australia and
New Zealand and acting as a hoiding company of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd. There has been no
significant change In the nature of this activity during the year,

Raview of operations , ‘
The total comprehensive income of the Company for the financial year after income tax was $7,614,000 (2014:
$113,768,000, excluding dividend from Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid $10,768,000). )

This result was driven by a decline in premium revenue of 36,636,000 across all channels in Australia and New
Zealand. [nvestment income has decreased by $4,302,000 impacted by lower investment holdings and yields.
The overall decline in income was offset by a decrease in claims and administration expenses of $7,224,000 and
& decrease In policy liabillies of $2,050,000.

Significant changes in tha state of affalrs

On 19 March 2615, KVD Australia Pty Ltd entered info a share sale agresment with GE Capital Finance
Australasia Pty Lid, to purchase 100% share capital of GE Capital Australia Holdings Pty Litd and indirectly its six
subsidiarles. The sale was executed on 24 November 2015 following regulatory approval. The subsidiaries
acquired include Hallmark Life fnsurance Company Ltd and Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd.

Dividends
Ne dividends were paid or declared by the Company in respect of the financial year 31 December 2015 (2014:
$240,000,000).

Matters subsequent fo the end of the financial year
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 Decamber 2015 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect:

{a) the Company's operations; or
(b) the results of those operations; ar
(c) the Company's state of affairs.

On the 3rd March 2016, the Board resolved to radeem the preference shares {$9,500,000) held by the Company
- back 1o the Parent. After the redemption, the Company will confinue te remain well capitalised.
This will nat significantly impast the Company’s resuits or operations.

Likely davelopments and expected results of operations
The Company will cantinue to operate in its existing business, baing Life Insuranca, In the next financial year.

Environmental regulation

The Group's eperations are subject io environmental regulations under Commonwealth and Siate legislation. The
board believes the Group has adequate systems in place for the management of its envircnmental obligations,
and is not aware of any material breach of those environmental obligations as they apply to the Group.



Haltmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Directors’ report

31 December 2015

{continued)

Indemniflcation and insurance of officers and auditors

Indemnification
Mandefory indemnification and logal costs
To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Company:

(a) shall indemnify any current or former officer of the Company who was or is made or is threatened to be
made a party or is otherwise involved in any procaeding by reason of the fact he or she is or was an
officer of the Company against all liability and loss sufferad and expenses reasonably incurred by that
officer {except a liability for legal costs): and

(b} shall indemnify an officer against legal costs incurred by that officer in defending any proceeding for
which that officer Is entitied to be indemnified pursuant to (a) above, in advance of its fina) disposition
provided however that such payment of legal costs shall onfy be made in advance of final disposition of
the proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by the officer to repay all amounts advanced if it should
be ultimzately determined that the officer is not entitled to be indemnified

Pearmissive indemnification and legal costs
To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Company:

{2) may indemnify any person who is not an officar of the Company (non-officer) against any liability or loss
incurred by that non-officer In thelr performance of, or in connection with, the role undertaken by them for
or on behalf of the Company {except a liability for legal costs); and

{b) may indemnify a non-officer against legal costs incurred by that non-officer in defending any proceeding
for which such non-officer is entitled to be indemnified pursuant to (a) above, in advance of its final
disposition provided however that, to the extent required by law, such payment of legal costs shall only
be made in advancs of final disposition of the proceeding upon recelpt of an undertaking by the
non-officer to repay all amounts advenced ¥ it should be ultimately determined that the non-officer is not
entitled to be Indemnified,

Any such permissive indemnity must be evidenced by way of written agreement by any officer designsted by the
board of directors for such purpose.



Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Directors' report

31 December 2015

(continued)

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors {continued}
insurance

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015 General Electric Company has paid premiums on behalf of
the Company in respact of directors' and officers’ llability insurance (non-indemnifiable covarage only) In respect
of the period up 10 24ih November 2015.

Subsaquently, the ulimate parent entity, KVD Australia Holdco Pty Ltd, has agread to pay premiums on behalf of
the Company, in respect of directors’ and officers’ lkability insurance (non-indsmnifiable coverage only) in respect
of the period ending 25 November 2016.

Such insurance policies insure directors and officers agalnst certain limited llabilities.

Directors have not Included details of the natura of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid as
such disclosure ks prohibited under the terms of the insurance policy.

The Company has not during or since the end of the financial year pald or agreed to pay any premiums in respect
of any person who has been an auditor of the Company for the purposes of indemnifylng them against any claims
by third parties arising from their audit report.

Proceedings on behalf of the company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Acf 2001 for leave to bring
proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for
the purpose of taking responsibiiity on behalf of the Company for il or part of those proceedings.

No praceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court under
section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Lead Auditor's independence declaration
The lead auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 forms
part of the directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2015 and is set out on page 4.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to In ASIC Class Order 88/100 dated 10 July 1998 (as amended} and In
accordance with that class order, amounts in this report and the accompanying financial statements have besn
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwlse indicated.

Signed In accordance with a resolution of directors.

nne Marea Stephenson (Chairman}
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016

Anna Elizabeth Gladman {Managing Director)
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016



e

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Seqtim; 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: the Directors of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd

1 declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relatmn to the audit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 there have been:

(i} no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 200! in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any apphcable code of professional conduct in relation to the

audit.

kon,

KPMG
Al

Andrew Reeves '
Partmer )
‘Syduey

17 March 2016

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member

firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with {PMG International Cooperative  Liability limited by a scheme approved under
('KPMG International’), & Swiss entity. Professional Standards Legislation.



Insurance premium revenue

Cutwards reinsurance premium expense
Nst Insurance premium revenug

Qther revenue from ordinary activities
Investment income

Total revenue

Claims expenses
Reinsurance and other recoveries
Net claims incurred

Decrease in policy liabilities
Decrease in reinsurers share of policy liabllities
Net decreass in policy iabilities

Administration expenses
Total claims and expenses

Profit before income tax

Incomse tax expense
Profit for the year

Othar comprehensive income

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently the profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Total items that may be reclassified subsequently the profif or

loss

Other comprehensive {(loss)/ income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit is attributable to:
Owners of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid

Total comprehensive income for the yaar is attributabla to:

Owners of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid

7 Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensivae [ncome
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Motes

1(a)

1(b}

1{c)

2e)(i)
2(e)i)

1{d}

1)

2015 2014
$'000 $000
28,571 35,179
{586) (558)
27,985 34,621
- {(10)
2,697 108,999
30,682 144,610
13,916 19,305
{399) (952)
13,517 18,353
(5,512) (3.496)
3 37
(5,509) {2.459)
10,112 12,5600
18,120 27,394
12,562 117,216
4435 4,183
8,127 113,033
(513) 738
513) 735
513) 735
7,614 113,768
8,127 113,033
8,127 113,033
7,614 113,768
7,614 113,768

The shove Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprahensive Income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other raceivables
Current tax asssts

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Relnsurance and other recoveries receivable
Gross policy liability ceded under reinsurance
Investment in controlled entity

Total assety

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Current tax liabllities

Deferred tax llabllittes

Policy claims in the process of setlement
Grass policy liabilittes

Total liabllities

Not assets

EQUITY
Conlributed equity
Reserves
Retained eamings
Total equity

Hallmark Life msurance Company Ltd
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015

Motes

2(a)
2(b)

2(c)
2(d)
2(e)(i)
3(b)

4(a)
#b)

2015 2014
$000 $000
401,230 105,830
2,193 M9
34 -

- 851

280 1,013

a3 46
103385 103618
207470 212,378
554 5,750

- 906

142 155
2,307 2,902

20699 _ 35282

it t————
T 32702 ___ 45085

174,468 167,203
10,100 10,100
84,383 85,336
79,985 71,858

174,468 167,283

The above Stefement of Financiaf Position should be read in conjunction with the accornpanying notes.
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Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends pald
Tax consolidation reserve
Balance at 31 Decomber 2014

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Votai comprehensive incoma for the year

Tax consolidation ragerve
Balanca at 31 Dacember 2015

The above Staterment of Changes in Equity should be read In conjuncifon with the accompanying noles.

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2015

Attributable to owners of Hallmark Life Insurance

Company Lid _
Contributed Retalned Total -
equity Reserves eamings equity
Notes $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
10,100 80,683 148,825 289,608
- - 113,023 113,053
- 738 - 735
. 735 113,033 113,768
B(b) . - (240,000)  (240,000)
' - - 3917 - 3817
14,100 85,335 71,858 167,293
10,100 85335 71858 167,209
- - 8,127 8,127
- (513} - (513
- (513) 8,127 7.614
- (439) - (439)
10,100 84,382 79,985 174,468
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Cash flows from operating activities
Premium received

Qutward reinsurance expense

Claims paid

Paymaenis o suppliers and employees
Interest received

Dividends recelved

Income taxes paid

Reinsurance and other recoverfes
Fees and commissions paid

Met cash (outflow) Inflow from operating activities

Payment for financial assets

Proceeds from sale of financlal assets
Proceeds from held-to-maturity investments
Net cash inflow/ from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends pald o company's shareholders
Net cash inflowf{outflow) from financing activities

Net {decrease} In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
€ash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Haltmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

. 2015 2014
Notes $°000 $000

18,773 34,651

(627) {573)

(6,024) {19,847)
(11,708) (6.148)

2,746 8,783

- 102,813
(5,464) (1,156)

1,132 203
4,403) {3,791)

5(a) 5,563] 114,925
- (820)

- 50,292

051" -

951 49,672
8ib) - (240,000)
. (240,500)
(4,618) (75,403)

105,830 180,330

18 ap3

2{a) 101,230 105,830

The above Statement of Cash Flows shoufd be read In conjuncion with the accompanying nofes.

8
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financlal statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
{continued)

Financial performance

This section provides additional information about those individual line items in the financial statements, relating
to financial performance, that the directors consider most relevant in the context of the operations of tha entlty.

1 Profit or loss information

{a) Insurance premium revenue

2015 2014

$'000 " $000
Direct life insurance premiums - single 19,157 24872
Direct life insurance premiums - regular 8,163 8714
Nen lifa insurance premiums _1,251 1,693
Total Insurance premium revanue 28,571 35,179
{b) Investment income

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Interest income 2,697 7.6832
Realised net gains/(losses) - 158
Unrealised net (lossesYgains - (782)
Dividend income - 102,990
Total investment income 2,897 109,989
(¢) Claims expensas

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Death and disabllity 3424 5195
Unamployment {94) 41
Terminations of policies . ' 10,586 14,069
Total claims expensaes 13,9016 19,305
{d} Administration expenses

2015 2014 '

$'000 $'000 Lo
Policy maintenance - others . 6,781 7,778
Fareign exchangs (gains)/losses . {375) (41)
Policy acquisition cost - others 450 662
Policy acqguisition cost - commission 2,139 3,742
Investmant managament expenses 117 359
Totai administration expenses 10,112 12,500

10



1 Profit or loss information (continued)
(e} Profit befere Income tax

Profit befora income tax includes the following spacific expenses:

Employee costs
Personnel cost
Contribution fo superannuation fund
Change in annual and long sarvice leave provision

Other administralive axpenses
Marketing fees
Management fees

{f) lncome tax expense
i) Incoeme tax expense

Current tax expense

Deferrad tax (note 3(a))

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Additional exit payment adjustments
Income tax expense

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2015

(i) Numerical reconciliation of incore tax expense fo prima facie lax payable

Frofit from continuing operations before income tax expense
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% {2014 - 30%) and tax at the New
Zealand tax rate of 28% (2014 - 28%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)

in paloulating taxable income:
Adjustment for Hallmark New Zealand policyholder base
Non-taxable income
Non-taxable dividends

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Additional exit payment adjustment
Income tax expense

1"

(continued)
2015 2014
$000 $'000

123 188

& g

{5) (10)

57 {150)

6,272 7.918
2015 2014
$'000 $oo0

3,760 4,182

{118) {83)

143 84

£50 -

4,435 4,183
2015 2014
$'000 §'c00

12,562 117.216

3,688 35,071

26 (75

(72} -

- {30,887)

3,642 4,099

143 84

650 -

4,435 4,183




Halimark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to tha financial statements

For tha year ended 31 December 2015
' {continued)

1 Profit or loss information {continued)
(g} Statement of sources of operating profit

2014
$'000

1,614
5,262
873

2015
$000
The shareholders’ operating profit after income tax of the statutory funds is
represented by:
Investment eamings on shareholders' retained and capital 619
Emergence of shareholders’ planned profits 5,064
Experience profit/(loss) ' 1,530
7,213

7,749

Balance sheet management

This section provides additional information about those individual line items in the statement of financiat position

that the directors consider most relevant In the context of the operations of the entity.

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

2014
$000

13,621
92,208

105,830

2014
$'000

675
241

919

2015

$'000
Cash at bank 16,848
Short term deposits 84,382
Total ¢ash and cash equivalents 101,230
(b) Trade and other receivables

2015

$'000
Trade reczivables 543
Investment income accrued and receivable 195
Qther racelvables 1,450
Total trade and other recelvables : : 2,193
Trade and other receivables - current 2,193

918

These balances include amounts receivable from related parties {note 13(b)).
The carrying value disclosed above approximates falr value at end of the reporting perlod.

{c) Flnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2015
$000

Dabt security - Foreigh national government -
Fixed interest securities -

2014
3000

251

Total assets at fair value through profit or loss . -

251

12



Hallmark Life Insurance Company L&d
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decesnber 2015

{continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial asseis at fair value through profit or less - current - 951
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - non-current - -
. 951
{d) Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Expected future reinsurance recoveries undiscounted
Quistanding claims 280 1,013
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable - current 280 1,013
The carrying amount disclosed above reasonably approximates fair value at reporting date.
{e] Paolicy liabilitles
(i Reconciffation of mavements in life insurance contract policy liabiiitles
: 2015 . 2014
$'000 $'000
Gross Ilife insurance contract llabilitias
Balance at 1 January . 35,282 38,607
Foraign exchange movement (Fg)] 171
Decrease in life insurance contract liabillities reflected in the profit or loss {5.512) {2,496)
Closing balance at 31 December 28,689 35282
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities
Balancs at 1 January 46 83
Decrease in reinsurance asseis reflected in the profit or loss {3} {37)
Closing balance at 31 December 43 45
Net insurance contract liabllitles 29,658 35,236
Net insurance contract liabilitles - current 18,696 17,424
Net insurance contract fiabilities - non current 13,960 17,812
- 29,656 35,236

13



Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continuead)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities {(continued)
{e)} Policy liabilities {continued)
() Components of net life insurance conlract abilties

2015 2014

$000 $000
Best estimata liability:
Futura policy banefits (Note {2) balow) 32,870 39,006
Unracouped acquisition expenses " {3,214) {3,770)
Total best estimate Habllity 28,656 35,236
Value of future shareholder profit margins (Note 1 below) - -
Net policy Hablilities 29 656 35,236

(1) This item Is not specifically caleulated under the accumulation method.
{2} This item includes the unearned premium component of the liability. The accumulation method has bheen
used to calculate liabilitles, and components relating to expenses and profits are not separately calculated.

() Capital requiraments of the life funds

The Company is required to hold prudential reserves, over and abave the policy liabilities, as a buffer against
adverse future experience and poor investment retumns. Life and General Insurers are required to follow the
relevant Prudential Standards as prescribed by APRA. The required level of capital for regulatory purposes (the
prescribed capital amount, or PCA) is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a life insurer is
exposed and a life company must ensure that the fife company and each of its statutory funds has, at all imes, a
capital base In excess of its PCA (plus any additional amount as required by (APRA)).

The excess of the Company's capital base over the PCA as at 31 December 2015 was $71.6 million {2014: $71.9
miliion).

The available assets of each statutory fund have also exceeded the Prudential Capital Raquirement at all times
during the year ending 31 December 2015.

In addition to the regulatory capital requirements, the Company maintains a target surplus providing an additional
capital buffer against adverse evenis.

14



Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2 Finangial assets and financial liabilities (continued}

{e) Policy liabilities {continued)

2015

{a) Capiial base

{b) Prescribed capital amount

Capltal In excess of prescribad capltal
amount = {a) - (b}

Capltal adequacy multiple = (a)/(b)

Capital Basa:
Met assets
Less: Difference betwean adjusied policy
liabilities and policy liabifities
Less: Adjustments to the value of the
holding in Hallmark General

_ Less: Additional adjustments to capital
base
Equals: Capital hase

Prescribed capital amount:

Asset risk charge

Asset concentration risk charge
Operational risk charge

Combined stress scenario adjustment
Prescribed capltal amount

2014

(a) Capltal base

(k) Prescribed capital amount

Capital in excess of prescribed capital
amount = (a) - (b}

" Capltal adequacy multiple = {a)/{bt}

Caplial Base:

MNet assets

Less: Difference betwaean adjusted policy
liabilities and policy lisblities

Less: Elimination of any excess DTAS over
DTLs

Less: Adjustments to the value of the
holding in Hallmark General

Common equity tier 1 capital

Prescribed capital amount:

Asgset risk charge

Asset concentration risk charge
Operational risk charge )
Combinad stress scenario adjustment
Prescribed capital amount

{continued)
Statutory Statutory  Shareholder
Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund Total
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
14,049 6,050 116,420 136,519
811 275 63,834 64,920
13,238 5,775 52,886 71,699
17.32 21,99 1.82 210
12,184 5,660 156,619 174,468
1,865 385 - 2,250
- - {30,599) {30,599)
- - (9,600} {9,600)
14,049 8,050 116,420 136,519
122 58 3,877 4,057
- - 58,238 58,238
682 217 - 907
- - 1,718 1,718
811 275 63,833 64,920
Statutory Statutory Shareholder
Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund Total
$000 £'000 $'000 $°0G0
9,828 34,982 80,582 124,402
1.016 423 60,968 62,407
8,812 34,559 28,624 71,995
9.68 82.63 1.47 215
7,822 34,439 125,032 167,293
2,006 543 - 2,549
- - € ©
- - (35,434) (35,434)
9,828 34,982 80,592 134,402
111 140 3115 3,366
- - 56,986 56,986
905 283 - 1,188
- - 867 867
1,016 423 £0,968 62,407

15



Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
{continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{e) Policy liahilities (continued)
{(Iv) Reconchiiation to Life Insurance Act 1995 operating profit and retained earnings of statulory funds

Allocation of operafing profif
There are no participating policy owners, therefore all emerging profits are allocated to shareholders.
Disiribution of retained earnings

Profits available for distribution are determined by the directors each year and are in ascordance with Division 6
of the Life Insurance Act 1985 and the constitution of the Company.

Retalned Profits Profit after Tax
2015 2014 2015 2014
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Shereholders interast (overseas and
non-participating businesses) {5,4086) 61,381 7.213 7,748
(fy Trade and other payables
20158 2014
$'000 “$'000
Trade payables 96 205
Cther payables 458 5,455
Total trade and other payables 554 5,750
Trade and other payables - current 536 5,750

The carrying amount disclosed above approximates fair value et reporting date.
These balances include amourits payable to related parties (note 13(b)}.

(g} Policy claims In the process of settlfement

2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Undiscounted expected future claims payment 2,307 2,802
Discount to present value : - -
Total policy claims in the process of settlement 2,307 2,902
Policy claims in the process of settlement - current 2,238 2,815
Policy clgims in the process of settlement - non current 69 87
2,307 2,902

{h) Fair value measurements

(i) Falr value hlerarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made In determining thae fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the acoounting standards. An explanation ¢f each level follows
undemeath the table.
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Hallmark Lifa Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statemants
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

2 Financial assets and financial lHabilities (continued}
{h) Fair value measurements (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
31 December 2015 $000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Financial assets )
Financlal assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss - - . - -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2014 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Financiat assets
Financlal assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss - 951 ~ 951

Levef 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or labilities in active markets.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (l.e. as prices) or indirectly (l.e. derived from prices), including quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in actlve markets.

Level 3: Inputs fo the valuation methadology are unohservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

(i) Valuation fachnigues used to determine fair values
Specific valuatior: techniques used to value financial instruments include:

* The use of quotad market prices or dealer quotes for similar instrumeants.

« the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
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Notes fo the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(continued)

2 Financial assets and financial lfabilities (continued)

(h} Fair value measurements {continued)

§i) Fair value measuramsnis using significant trmobservable Inputs (level 2)
The following table presents the changes in leve! 2 items for the financlal years ended 31 December 2015 and 31

December 2014:

Qpening balance at 1 January

Total gainsf(losses) recognised in:
Profit or loss
Other comprehansive incoma
Government Bond (NZ) Maturity
Closing halance at 31 December

3 Non-financial assets and liabilities
{a) Deferred tax llabllitles

The halance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Operating accruals

Other

Defesred commission

Total deferrad tax liabilities/{assots)

Deferred tax liahilities are classified as non-current liabilities. -

Movements in deferrad tax liabilities:
Opening balanca at 1 January
Charged/f(credited) to profit or loss (note 1{f))
Qver/{(under) provision in prior years
Additional exit payment adjustment

Closing balance at 31 December
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2015 2014
$°000 $'000
951 958
W (28}
23 21
(267} -
- 951
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
(54) (169)
(48) {10)
244 334
142 166
155 154
(118) (83}
3 84
102 -
142 155




Halimark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
3 Non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)
{b) Investment in controlled entity
2015 2014
$'000 $000
Non-currant
investment in controlled entity at cost 103,385 103,619

Investment in the controlled enlity is carriad at cost adjusted for its Income tax liability of §234,000 that is
transferred to tha head entity pursuant to UIG Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting {2014: transfer
1o head entity $2,424,000).

Farticulars in relation to conlrolfed antity:
Counfry of Clags of

Namae of entity incorporaticn shares Equity holding
2015 2014
%o %
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
4 Equity

{a) Contributed eguity
{i) Share capital

2015 2014 2015 2014

Mo. of Shares  Mo. of Shares - $'000 $000
Paid up ordinary shares - . 251 251 500 500
Non-cumulative redeemable preference
shares 48,000 48,000 9,600 9,600
48,251 48,251 10,100 10,100

() Ordinary shares
The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. All issued shares are
fully paid. . :

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in
proportion 1o the number of and amounts paid on the shares heid.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one
vote, and upon a poll each shave is entitied to cne vote.

(] Non cumulative redesmable preforence shares

Preference shares are able 1o receive a preference dividend if declared by the directors of the Company. Each
holder shall have the right to receive a copy of any repori or accounts and recelve notice of and sttend general
meetings of the Company but shall have no right to speak, vote, move or second any resolutions.

{iv] Parent enfilies
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd is ownad by Latitude Personal Finance Ply Lid with 100% majority interest.
The Company's ultimate parent entity is KVD Australia Holdco Ply Ltd, which is incarporated In Australia.
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4 Equity (continued)
{a) Contributed equity (continued)

(b} Reserves

Foreign currancy franslation reserve
Tax consolidation reserve
Total reserves

Movements in reserves ;

Foreign currency transiation reserve

Opening balance at 1 January

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Closing balance 31 December

Tax consolidetion ressrve

Opening balanca at 1 January .

Current tax liahility transferred {from)/to Head Entity
Closing balance 31 December

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
- 2015 2014
$'000 $000
1,145 1,658
83,238 83,677
84,383 85,336
2045 2014
$'000 $'000
1,658 923
{513) 735
1,145 1,668
83.677 79,760
439) 3917
83,238 83,677




Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid
Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 Decoember 2015

{continued)
5 Cash flow Information
{a) Reconclliation of profit after Income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Prefit for the year 8,127 113,033
Adjustments
Realised (gains)ltosses on sale of financial assets - {159)
Unrealised losses/{gains) In value of financial assets - 782
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash eguivalents (18) {903}
Changeo in operating assels and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in frade and other receivables (1,274} 2,193
Increase/{decrease} in deferred tax liability . {13) 1
Increase/{decrease) in irade and other payables (5,196} 1,668
Increase/(decrease) in current tax lability {1,035) 538
Increase/(decrease} in tax consalidation reserve (439) 3917
{Increase)/decrease in reinsurance and other racoveries receivable 733 (659}
(Increase)/decrease in gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance 3 37
Decrease/(increase) in investment in controlled entity 234 (2,424)
Increase/{decrease) in policy claims in the process of settlement (595) (509)
{Decrease}increase in gross policy liabilities (5,583) (3,325)
(Decrease)fincreasea in foreign currancy translation reserve (513 735
Net cash (outflow)/Infilow from operating activities {5,569 114,825
Risk

This section of the notes discusses the Company's exposure to various rigks and shows how these could affect
the Company's financlal position and performance.

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods

The effective date of the actuarial report on policy ligbiliies and sclvency requirements is 31 December 2015.
The actuarial report was prepared by Mr Brendan Mark Counsell, BSc, BA, FIAA, FNZSA . The actuarial report
indicates that Mr Counsell is satisfied as to the accuracy of tha data upon which policy labilites have been
determined.

The amount of policy liabilities has been determined in accordanca with methods and assumptions disclosed in
these financial statements and the requiremants of the relevant accounting standards (which may differ from the
requivements of the Life Insurance Act).

Policy llabiiitles for life Insurance contracts have been calculated in accordance with Prudential Standard LPS
340 'Valuation of Policy Liabilities' issued by the Australlan Prudential Regulatfon Authority (APRA) under
subsection 230A{1} of the Life Insurance Act. The prudential standard requires the policy liabilliiies to be
calculated in a way which allows for the systematic release of planned margins as services are provided to policy
owners.

The profit camers used for the major product groups in order to achieve the systematic release of planned
margins are as follows:
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{continued})
6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)
Product groups Method (projection or other) Profit cartiers
Lump sum risk Accumuilation (2014: Accumulation)  Claims {implied)

Disabllity and involuntary unemployment income  Accumulation (2014: Accumulation)  Claims (implied)

Policy liabilities have baen calculated as the provision far unearned premium, less a deferred acquisition cost
item. The recognilfon rate of premiurmn has been chosen to approximate the planned margin release that would be
achleved through use of the projection method.

bisclosure of assumptions
Assumptions ara required to establish recoverabllity of acquisition costs. Key assumptions are listed below:
(a) Discount rates

The gross interest rates used are the gross yield to redemption of benchmark government securities. For the
current valuation, these are: .

Australia

20 days 2.38% (2014: 2.78%)
5 years 2.24% (2014: 2.27%)
New Zealand

90 days 2.75% (2014: 3.67%}
5 years 3.00% (2014: 3.61%)

{b) Inflation rates
Allowancs for future inflation of 2.5% p.a. for Australia is assumed (2014: 2.5% p.a.}.

The future inflation assumption Is based on the long term target range of 2%-3%.

Allowance for future inflation of 1.0% per annum for New Zealand is assumed (2014: 1.0% per annum). The
future inflation assumption |s based on the medium tarm target range of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand of 1%
-3%

{c) Future expenses and indexation

Maintenance expense assumptions have been based on the experience in the current year and budgeted
expenses for the year 2016. Inflation adjustments are consistant with the inflation assumption.

{d) Mortality and morbidity

Mortality rates for risk products have been based an experience over recent years. A loss ratic approach (applied
to eamed premium) was adopted. The loss ratios used have not varied significantly from these used in 2014 with
the exception of an Increase In the loss ratio for the small remaining term life and disability covers and a
decrease for death cover on Australian credit cands.

{e) Disabllity and Involuntary unemployment

The general approach to actuarial estimation of disability and involuntary unemployment llabilities {in the New
Zealand statutory fund) is to analyse all available past experience. This analysis allows pattems to be identified in
the past experience. Based on this, development pattermns assoclated with the run-off of outstanding claims at the
balance date can ba estimated. The sstimate of the outstanding claims includes an allowance for claims incurred
but not reportect {IBNR) and the further development of reported claims, & risk margin and claims bandling
expense provision. Actuarial methods such as payment per clalm Incurred (PPCI) and payment per claim open
(PPCO)} are adopted to estimate the autstanding claims.
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{continued)

6 Actuarial assumptions and mathads (continued)
Disclosure of assumptions (continued)
{a} Disahility and involuntary unemploymaent {(continued)

The key actuarial assumptions for the determination of the outstanding claims habilities are claim termination

rate, average claim size (disability = NZ$1,214, unemployment = NZ$593), a claims handling expense rate of

13% of the projected gross claim payments (based on expense investigation) and a discount rate of 2.65%

{based on the yields of 1 year and 2 year New Zealand Govemment bonds as at 31 December 2015). Across all

classes, changes fo the claim termination and average clalm size assumptions would cause the most significant
change te the liabillty estimate.

{f) Voluntary discontinuance

Voluntary discontinuance rates vary by product and have been based on the Company’s racent discontinuance
axperience.

For the major classes of business, the assumad aggregate rates of discontinuance are:

Consumer credit insurences 23% p.a. (2014: 32% p.a.)
Regular premiumn term life insurances 13% p.a. {2014: 16% p.a.)

{g) Capital raquirements

The Company is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above the policy liabilities, as a buffer against
adverse future experience and poor investment returns. The methods and bases used in determining the capitat
requirements were in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Standard LPS 110 'Capital Adequacy’
as issued by APRA. _

Impact of changes in assumptions

The policy llabllities for insurance contracts have been calculated using the accumulafion method. Under ihis
method, changes in assumptions do not have any impact on policy liabilities in the current perlod, unless a
product enters loss recognition. As at 31 December 2015, the assumption changes have not resulted in any of
the related product groups entering loss recognition, and hence the pelicy liability has not besn impacted by
changes in assumptions.

The value of future profit margins is not explicitly calculated under the accumulation method and hence the
impact of any change in assumptions on the value of future profit margins is not determined.

Sensitivity analysis

Movements in key variables such as moriality experience, lapse rates and expenses will have an impact on the
future cash flows, performance and net assets of the business.

As the accumulation method is used to determine policy habilities for insurance contracts, changes in the
assumptions around these key variables do not have any impact on the policy liability or retained profits at the
current balance date, unlass a product group enters loss recognition, An alternate approach to demonstrafing the
sensitivity to changes In variables Is to consider the impact on profit and equity at the curent balance data if the
expernience ovar the current financial period varied under certain scenatios. The table below considers a number
of changes in variables, and shows the impact on the profit and equity ¥ that change had been experienced
during the financial reporting period.
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods {continued)

SBensitivity analysis {continued)

2018

Result of change in variables
Mortality/rmorbidity- worsening by 5%
Mortality/morbidity- improving by 5%
Lapse rate- worsening by 5%

Lapse rate- improving by 5%
Expenses-worsening by 5%
Expenses- improving by 5%

2014

Result of change In varlables
Mortality/morbidity- worsening by 5%
Mortality/morbidity- improving by 5%
Lapse rate- worsening by 5%

Lapse rate- improving by 5%
Expenses- worsening by 5%
Expsanses- improving by 5%

7 Financial risk management

Impact on profit or loss
Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance
$'000 $'000
{138) (123)
138 123
36 36
(36) (36)
(243) (243)
243 243

Impact on profit or loss

Groes of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance
$'000 $'000
{185) {166)
185 166
58 &8
(58) (58)
{272) (272)
272 272

Halimark Lifa Insurance Company Ltd
MNotes to the financial stataments
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
impaet on equity
Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance
$'000 $'000
{138} (123)
138 123
36 36
(36} (36)
{243) (243)
243 243
Impact on squity
Gross of Met of
reinsurance reinsurance
$'000 $'000
{185) (1686)
185 166
68 58
(58) {58}
{272) {272)
272 272

This note explains the Company's exposure to financial risks and how these risks eould affect the Company's
{future financial performance. Current year profit and loss information has been included where relevant to add

further context.
{a} Transition Risk

Fellowing completion of the sale of GE's consumier business to KVD Australia Pty Ltd, operational risk exposures
are higher as services provided under the Transitional Services Agreement {TSA) with GE are transferved to
Latitude. This will result in significant change across the business and Halimark Life [nsurance Company Lid is
actively monitoring and managing these risks.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financlal loss due tc 8 counterparty falling to perform thelr contractual obligations and
principally arises through the Company's investment in financial instruments, receivables from related or other
parties, and claims on reinsurance contracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:
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7 Financial risk management (continued)
(&) Cradit risk {continued)

{fiy Financial asssls

The Company's investment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved by the board.
The guldetines establish credit approval authoritles, concentrations limits, and approved Investment porifolio
parameters, these guidelines comply with the GE Capital Corporation Financial Institutions Credit Standards
{SECC FICS) poliey which sets out conceniration limits and additional portfolio parameters. The Company will
continue to adopt the GECC FICS policy until 2 new Investment Policy is approved by the Board in 2616.
Management conducts a regular review of the investment haldings, compliznoe is monitored and exposures or
breaches are reporied to the board. The mandate 15 reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk
environment. b

The Company only invests with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1/A from Standard & Poor's
{$&P). The Gompany further limits its exposure 1o credit risk by setting individua! expesure limits. There s no
significant concentration of credit risk and managemeant does not expect any counterparty to fail o meet ifs
obligations.

(i) Reinsuranco assets

Reinsurance |s placed with counterparties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management strategy {(ReMS).
Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A. The Company further sels ite exposure to credit risk
by setting individual exposure limits. At the end of each reporing period, management parforms an assessment
of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the ReMS.

(i} Loans and other receivables

The Company’s maximum credit risk exposure at balance date is limited 1o the carrying amount of the financlal
assets as stated In the statement of finangial position. The Company does not have a significant congentration of
credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties (Sea nots 13(b)).

The table below shows the Company’s maximum exposure o credit risk at balance date.

Non- Non-
investment investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Past due or
grade  satisfactory* unsatisfactory impaired impaired Total
2015 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Financial assets
. Cash and cash

equivalents 101,230 - - 101,230 - 101,230
Trade and other
receivables - 2,183 - 2193 - 2,193
Financial assets at fair
value :
through profit or loss

Debt securities - - - - - -
Investment in controlisd
entities - 103,385 - 103,385 - 103,385
Reinsurance and other
recoveries receivable - 280 : - 280 - 280
Gross poficy Habflity
ceded under
reinsurance - 43 - 43 - 43
Total cradit risk
exposure 101,230 105,901 - 207,131 - 207,131
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{continued)
7 Financial risk management (continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)
Non- Non-
investment Investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Past due or
grade  satisfactory * unsatisfactory Impaired Impaired Total

2014 $'000 $'600 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash '
equivalents 105,830 - - 105,830 - 105,830
Trade and other )
recaivables - 919 - 219 - 919
Financial assets at fair
value
through profit or (oss

Dabt securities a51 - - 951 - 851
Investment in contrplled
entitles - 103,619 - 103,619 - 103,619
Reinsurance and other .
recoveries receivable - 1,013 - 1.013 - 1,013
{Gross policy liabfity
ceded under
reinsurancea - 46 - 46 - 48
Total credit risk .
exposure 106,781 105,597 - 212,378 - 212,378

* A receivable is deemed satisfactory when management is satisfied that the obligor has the capacity to meet its

financial obligations.

The table below classifies the financial assets of the Company by counterparty credit rating {S&P).

AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total
2015 $000 £'000 $'n00 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financlal Assets
Cash and ¢ash equivalents - - 101,230 - - 101,230
Trade and other receivables* - - - - 2,193 2,193
Financlal assets at fair value
through
profit or loss

Debt securities - - - - - -

Investment in controlled entity* - - - - 103,385 103,385
Reinsurance and other
recoveries receivable - - 280 - - 280
Grass policy liability ceded
under reinsurance - 43 - - - 43
Total credit risk exposure - 43 131,510 - 165,378 207,131
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{continued)
7 Financial risk management (continued)
{P) Credit risk (continued)
: AAA AA A BBB Notrated Total
2014 $'000 $'000 $'900 $'000 $000 $'000
Financial Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents - - 105,830 - - 105,830
Trade and other receivables* - - - - 819 9149
Financial assels ai fair value
through
profit or loss
Debt securities - 951 - - - 951
Invastment in controlled entity* - - - - 103,619 103,619
Reinsurance and other
recoveries receivable - - 1,013 - - 1,043
Gross policy liability ceded
under reinsurance - 46 - - - 45
Total credit risk exposure - 887 106,843 - 104,638 212,378

* The raceivables and investment in controlled entity are largely with related parties, refer to note 13(b)).

No receivables are past due or impaired at balance date (2014: Nil).

{e} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to maet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's objeciive and funding sirategy seeks fo ensure liquidity and diversity of funding sources {o meet
actual and confingent liabilities in both stable and adverse market conditions.

The Company's liquidity is primarily menitored through the production of statement of cash flows for board

review, Perlodic review of the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities is performed to
ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained. :
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7 Financial risk management {continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of undiscounted contractual cash flows associated with the
Company's financial liabilities at balance date, excluding insurance liabilities:

Uptoa Over 5

year 1-2years -2-5years years Noterm Total
2018 $'000 §'000 £000 $'000 000 $'000
Trade and other payables 554 - - - - 554
Policy claims in process of settlement 2,238 52 17 - - 2,307
Gross policy liabilities 16,740 7,168 5,872 219 - 20,699
Net principal Habillties 18,532 7,220 5,880 919 - 32,560
2014
Frade and other payables 5,750 - - - - 5,750
Palicy claims in process of settlement 2,815 66 21 - - 2,902
Gross policy liabililes 17,469 8,553 8,234 1,026 - 35,282
Net principal Habllities 26,034 - 8,618 8,255 1,028 - 43,934

The Company's financial assets and liabllitles ars carred in thé statement of financial position at amounts that
approximate fair value.

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of its financial instruments or fuiure cash flows will decrease due to
changes In external economic variables such as interest rates, currency rates and equity prices.

The board is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management polictes of the Company In relation
to market risk. The Company's investment activities follow the GECC FICS policy. The GECC FICS policy
document outlines the level of acceptable market risk, including counterparty ratings and exposure lavels that
apply to the investment activities of companies within the GECC Group. The Company will continue to adopt the
GECC FICS policy until a naw Investment Palicy is approved by the Board in 2016.

(i} Currency risk’

Curmrency risk is the risk that the value of recognised assets and labilittes or the cash flows from possible future
transactions, that are dencminated in a currency, other than that of the funchional currency, will decrease due fo

changes In market exchange rates.

The Company has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material.
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7 Financial risk management (continued)

{d] Market risk (continuad)

() Interest rate risk

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015
(continued)

Intarest rate risk is the risk that the value or cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates.

The following table analyses tha Impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest rates on the

Company's oparating results.

215

Flnanclal
assets

Short term
deposits

Debt securities

2014

Financlat
assels

Short term
deposits

Debt securities

Change
Carrying in
amount varlables

$'000 %
84,382 -1
- -1

84,382
Change
Carrying in

amount varlables

$'000 %
92,209 -1
951 -1

93,160

impact on
profit
before
tax Impact on eguity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2years 2-5years years
$'000 $000 £'000 §$000 $'one $'oon
{844) (591} - - - (591)
(644) (51 - - - (591)
Impact on
profit
before
tax Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-Zyears 2-5years years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
(922) (645) - - - (645)
{10) - {7) - - (7
(932) {645) ) - - (652

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014 and assumas that all other variables remain the same.

(i) Price tisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities or financial instruments could change due to fluctuations in

market prices.

The Cempany has no equity securitics as at 31 December 2015.
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8 Capital management

Capital consists of ordinary shares, non-cumulative redeemable preference shares and retained eamings.

The Company’s capita! management strategy plays a ceniral role in managing capital risk arising from the
business activities of the Company, providing an appropriate level of capital fo protect poficyholders’ interests and
satisfy regulators. The sirategy seeks {e ensure sufficient capital levels are maintained in both stable and adverse
market conditions.

The Company has adopted 2 target surplus palicy to assist the board and management to manage ite capital
position. The target surplus level has been set with reference to a range of risks and possible adverse scenarios
faced by the Company.

The Company has net assets in excess of the adopted target surplus requirement, reflecting [ts current strong
cepital pasition.

In addition to the Company's target surplus policy, external capital requirsments are set and regulated by APRA.
The Company calculates its capital position according t0 the relevant prudential standards which ensures
sufficient capital margins within the life statutory funds are maintained. An insurer's capital base is expected to be
adeguate for the size, business mix, complexity and risk profile of its business.

It is tha Company's policy to hold a capital base in excess of those required by APRA according to its target
surplus policy. The capital level is regulardy monitored to minimise the risk of a regulatory breach.

For detaifed information on the Company's capital posifion and the capital requirements of APRA, refer to note
2(e)(T).

(a) Risk management
Insurance contracts

An insurance conmract Is a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from ths
policyholder by agreeing 1o compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future event that will adversely
affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty surrounding the
probability and timing of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of its effect. Insurance risk is assessed
by the Company at a contract level on its inception and is periodically reassessed as the risk may vary during the
pariod cf insurance cover,

The malority of direct insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form basis. There are no special
term and conditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The business written consists mainly of consumer credit life insurances and ferm life insurances. The term
insurance policies cover mainly death, but In some cases terminal #nass. Guaranteed benefits are pald on death
or terminal illness.
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8 Capital management (continued)
(a) Risk management {continued)

Insurance risk management

Insurance risk management Is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financlal impact of events
that may require settlement by the Insurer; and the ability of the Company to mitigaie the financial impact of these
events an its operating results.

In accordance with Prudential Standards CPS 220 Risk Management and LPS 230 Reinsurance Management for
Life Companies Issued by APRA, the board and senior management of the Company have developed,
implemented and maintained a sound and prudent risk management strategy (RMS) and a reinsurance
management strategy (ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS identify the Company's policies, procedures, processes and controls that address all knewn
material risks, financial and non-financial, arising from the business. Annually, the board certifies to APRA that
edequate strategies have been put in place fo monitor those risks, that the Company has systems in place to
ensure compliance with legislative and prudential requirements, and that the board has satisfied itself as to the
compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMs are detailed further below,

(I} Underwriting strategy

The board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the Company has the ability to mest the
insurance needs of the policy holdars and te ensure the ability {o pay benefits and claims when dus. Tha strategy
invelves the identification of rsks by type, impact and likelihood and involves the application of mathematical
modeling tc determine that predusts are appropriately priced.

(i} Reinsurance siralegy

A conservative approach is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the Company and whare
deemad appropriate will spread the risk associated with the insured evenls according to its ReMS. All
reinsurance treaties are subject to analytical and stafistical modeling to ensure that they offer a sufficlent level of
cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment with the ReMs of the Company.

For the Company's main term life product lines in Australia, the level of reinsurance cover is regularly reviewed.
For the Company's main term life product lines in New Zealand, fwo reinsurance treaties provide sumplus
reinsurance cover. The Company considers this to ba a relatively conservative retention level considering the
level of sums insured written and the capita! position of the Company. No reinsurance is in place for the
Company's consumer cradit insurance preducts.

{lif) Claims management

Strict claims management procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in accordance with
policy condifions. Claim outcomes are monitored {o track the actual versus expected experience of the portfolio,
with feedback delivered to underwriting and product development.

(v} Concentration of insurance risk

The Company's porifolio of products and policy hoiders Is sufficlently diversified such that there is no material
conceniration of insurance risk.

(b) Dividends

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Dividends paid during the financial year ended 31 December - 240,000
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(continued)

Unrecognised items

Thie section of the notes provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial statements as
they do not (vet) satisfy the recognition criteria,

9 Commitments and contingencies
No contingent assets or cantingent liabilities existed as atl 31 Decembar 2015 (2014 nil).

10 Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

No matier or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has siniﬁca;'ltly affected or may significantly
affect:

« the Company's operations; or
+ the results of those operations; or
+ the Company's state of affairs,

In eardy January 2016, APRA indicated that the prefarence shares within the Shareholders” Fund should not be
recognised as avallable capital to support the business. On the 3rd March 2016, the Boerd resclved to redeem
the preference shares ($9,600,000} held by the Company back to the Parent. After the redemption, the Company
wiil continue to remain well capitalised.

Thiz will not gignificantly impact the Company’s results or operations.

Other information

This section of the notes Includes cfher information that must be disclosed to comply with the accounting
standards and other pronouncements, but that is not immediately related to individual line items in the financial
statements.

11 Remuneration of auditors

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company and
Its related practices:

{a) Audit services
Amuounis received or due and receivable by auditors of the Group (KPMG Australia) for:

2015 2014
, $ $
Audit and review of financial statements 61,007 83,885
Other assurance services:
- APRA Retum 35,782 49,200
AFSL Audit 4,113 5,655
Total remuneration for audit and other assurance services 100,902 138,740

Audit fees in 2015 and 2014 were paid by Latitude Financial Services Australia Hoidings Pty Lid. and GE Capital
Finance Australia Pty Lid. respectively.
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12 Key management personnel disclosures
The following persons were key management personnel of the Company at any time during the reporting period.
(i} Direciors

Duncan Gerald West
JoAnne Maree Stephenson
Christophar Paul Knoblanche
Anna Elizabeth Gladman
Rachel Emma Cobb

{i) Other executives

Aliessa Pritchard

Alexandra Yaniv (resigned 31 May 2015}
Rachel Perry

Drossos Haramantas (resigned 24 November 2015)
Ryan Kiss (resigned 17 September 2015)

Kevin Smith (resigned 17 April 2015)

Emma Robinson (resigned 30 January 2015)
Julie Taylor

Karen Parkin {appointed 12 October 2015}

Cath Mortlock (appointed 13 June 2015)

Shelly Slater {appointed 15 March 2015)
Mercedes Colla (appointed 29 September 2015)

Key management personnel compensation

In addition to their salaries, the Company and related parties also provided non-gash benefits which included long
service leave and an employes shara option plan.

2015 214
5 $

Short-term employes benefits 3,013,252 2,208,404
Long-term amployee benefits 249,804 209,423
Equity compensation benafits 1,420 24,471
3,264,476 2,443,298

There are no other transactions with key managameant personne! (2014: $nil).
* The 2015 amount includes termination benefits of $265,999 (2014: $132,600)
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13 Related party transactions
(a) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions ocourred with related parties:

Management fees pald to/(received from):
GE Capital Finance Australasia Ply Lid
Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Lid
Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd
GE Capital Corporation

Cross charges pald fo:
GE Capltal Finance Australasia Pty Ltd
GE Finance and Insurance (NZ)
| atitude Financial Services Lid - NZ

Roysily paid:
GE Capltal Registry, Inc.

Commissian paid lo:
GE Personal Finance Pty Ltd
Latitude Personal Finance Pty Ltd
GE Capltal Financa Australia
Latitude Financae Australia
GE Capltal Finance Ausiralasia Pty Ltd
GE Finance and Insurance {NZ)
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - N2

Dividend (recelved)pald
Hallmark General Insurance Campany Lid

(b) Ouistanding balances with related parties

Receivables/(pavables)
GE Capital Finance Australasia Ply Ltd
Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Ltd
GE Personal Fingnce Piy Ltd
Latitude Parsonal Finance Pty Lid
GE Capital Finance Australia
Latitude Finance Australia
GE Finance and insurance Pty Ltd (NZ)
KVD New Zaaland Lid
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
GE Capital Holdings Partnership

Halimark Life Insurance Company Lid

Notes to the flnanclal statements
For tha year ended 31 December 2015
{continued)

2018

4,115,606
31,081
2,289,035

510,875
121,440
23,531

107,810

1,019,619
177,986
712,152

77,848

847,270
92,037

2015

(79,502)
696,011
327,155

587,355
(81,016)

2014

4,749,739
2,660,153
263,877

687,593
201,906

296,378

1.413,815
805,965

45,891
1,310,309

{103,000,000)

2014

(15,785}
321,047
348,305
377,506

{3,482,323)
(1,664,386)
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13 Related party transactions (continued)
{b} Outstanding balances with related parties {continued)

{continued)

No provisions for doubtful debts have been ralsed in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has

besn recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

At 31 December 2015, there are no amounts outstanding owed by the Hallmark Companias to Latitude Financial
Services Australia Holdings Pty Ltd or to other related parties which are not reflacted in the accounts, and there
are no further amounis to be charged by Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Ply Ltd or by cther
related parties in relation to services provided to the Hallmark Compantes during 2015 or prior years.

14 Disaggregated Information on life Insurance business hy fund
' Non-investment Non-investment Non-investment

linked linked linked
Statutory Fund Statutory Fund Total
1 2

§000 $'on0 $'600
2015
Financial assels 38,974 11,585 50,569
Life insurance contract
liabilities (24,812) (4,886} (29,699)
Othar liabilities (1.976) (1,045) {3,021)
Retainaed eamings 9,905 (4,499) 5.406
Premium revenue {21,280) (6,685} (27,985)
Investment revenue {908) {880) {1,788)
Claims expense 10,684 2,833 13,517
Movement in palicy lighilities (3,693} (1,818) (5,509)
Other operating expenses 7.574 2,528 10,102
Operating profit before tax (7,632) (4,030) (11,662)
Operating profit after tax (4,476} {2,737) {7,213)
2014
Financial aszets 43,148 43,589 86,735
Life insurance contract
habfittes (28,514} (6,768) (35,282)
Other llabifities {6.810) (2,382) {9,192)
Retained eamings {28,619) (32,762) (61,381}
Premium ravenue (25,574) (9,047) {34,621}
Investment revenue {2,299) (1,344) (3,643)
Claims expense 14,487 3,866 18,353
Movement in policy liabilities (2,607) (852) ] (3,459}
Dther operating expenses 8,631 . 3,740 12,421
Operating profit before tax (7,311) (3,627} {10,948}
Operating profit after tax (5.124) (2,625) {7,749)
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Shareholder Total

Fund
$'000 $009

156,601 207,170

- {29,699)
18 (3,003)
(85,391} (79,985)
- (27,985)
(909}  (2,697)
- 13517

- {5,500)

10 10,112
(000) (12,562)
(914) (8,127}

125,643 212,378

- [(35,282)
(611) (9,803}
{10,477) (71,858)
- (34,621)
(106,347) (109,990)
- 18,353

- (3,459)

79 12,500
(106,268) (117,216)
(105,284) {113,033)
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{continued)

15 Summary of significant accounting policies

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The Company is registered under the Life [nsurance Act 1995 {LIA).

lis reglstered office and principal place of business is:
Level 4

99 Walker Street

North Sydney NSW 2060

Australia

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise slated.

For the purposes of the financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 17 March 2018,

{a) Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

This general purposa financial statements cover the Company and its New Zealand Statutory Fund as a single
entity and has been prepared In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) and interpretations
lssued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), and the Corporations Act 2001, The financial
statements also comply with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations adopted by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The Company has applied the exemption from consolidation In accordance with AASE 10. In accordance with
AIFRS, consolldated financial statements are prapared by the Company's ullimate Australian parent entity, KvD
Australia Holdco Pty Lid.

Basgis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis with certain exceptions as descrived in the
accounting policies below.

Change in accounting policles

There has been no change In accounting policies for the current financial period that would have a material
impact on these financial statements.

(b} Principles for life Insurance businass
Activities of the [ife insurance cperations

The life Insurance aperations of the Company are conductad within separate statutory funds as raquired by the
LIA and are reported in aggregate with the shareholders’ fund in the statement of profit or less and cther
comprehensive income,siatemant of financial position and statement of cash flows of the Company. The life
insurance operations of the Company comprise the sefling and administration of life insurance contracts only.

Life Insurance confracts involve the acceplance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined a5
significant if and only &, an insured event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any
scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance {i.e. have no discernible effect on the economics of
the transaction). Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on the occurrence of a
specifisd svent such as death, injury or disability caused by accident or illness. The insured benefit is either not
IInked or only partly linked tc the market value of the investments held by the Company, and tha financial risks
are substantially borne by the Company.
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15 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

{b} Principles for life insurance business {continued)

Restrictions on assets

Monies held in the statutory funds are subject to the distribution and transfer restrictions and other reguirements
of the LIA.

As the Company does not have any paricipating business, all profits and losses are allocated to the
shareholders.

(c) Critical estimates, Judgements and errors

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the raported amounts of assets and liabilities 2t year
end. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and cther
factors, including expectations of future avents that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
areas in which accounting estimates are applled are described below.

Life insurance contract liabliities

The financial reporting methodology used fo determine the fair value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred
1o as margin on services (MoS).

Under MoS the excess of premium raceived over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognised over the life of
the contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service), hence the
term margin on services. The movement in life Insurance contract liabilities recognised in the profit or loss reflects
the planned releass of this margin.

The projection method is usually used to determine life insurance contract liabilities. The net present vatue of
projected cashfiows is calculated using bast estimate assumptions about future evenis. When the benefits under
the life Insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it. the discount rate applied is based on the expected
future earnings rate of those assets, otherwisa, a risk-frea discount rate is used.

Where the accumulation methed has been used, the liabliity Is based on an uneamed premium reserve, less and
explicit allowance for deferred acquisition costs and a reserve for IBNR's. Where uged, the accumulation method
is considered (o be a reasonable approximation of liabilities had they been determined on a projection basis. A
summary of the significant actuaral methods and assumptions used is contained in note €.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are alsa computed using the zbove methods. In addition, the
recoverability of these assels is assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that the balance Is reflective of the
amounts that will ultimately be recelved, taking into consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk.
Impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Company may not receive amounts due fo it
and these amounts can be refiably measured,

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenus is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Tha Company racognises
revenue from non-insurance activities when It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue amount can be rellably measured. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction ang the specifics of each arrangement. In
acddition, the following specific recognition criteria apply to revenue streams:
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15 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(4) Revenue recognition (continued)

() Premium revenue

Premium raevenue comprises emounts charged to policyholders (dirsct premium) for insurance contracis,
exciuding stamp duties and taxes collacted on behalf of third parties, including the goods and services tax jn
Australia.

Premium revenue Is rgcognised in the profit or ioss when it has been eamed. It Is recognised as earned from the
date of attachment of risk {generally the date a contract is agreed to but may be earlier if persuasive evidenca of
an arrangement exists) over the period of the related insurance contracts in accordance with the pattern of the
incidence of risk expectad under the contracts. The pattern of the risks underwritten is generally matched by the
passing of time bul where time does not approximate the pattern of risk, previous claims experience is used to
derive the incldence of risk.

Premium for unclosed business (business written ciose to reporting date where attachment of risk is prior to
reporting date and there is insufficient information to accuretely identify the business) is brought te account based
on previous experience with due allowance for any changes in the pattern of new business and renewals.

The uneamed portion of premium Is recognised within gross poiicy llabiiities in the statement of financial position.

(#) Investment income

All investment income Is recognised as revenue on an accruals basis. Interest income from assets backing
life-insurance liabilities, which are designated as falr value through proflt or loss, Is recognised on a time
proportion basls using the simple interest method. Dividends are brought {0 account as declared and are
recognised net of franking credits. Assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss and the related net
realised and unrealised gains and losses arising on financial asgets designated at fair value through profit or foss
are included in the statement of profit or ioss and other comprehensive Income as investment revenue.

(e) Claims expenses

The Company’s clalms llability is measurad as the present value of expected future payments relating to claims
Incurred at the reporting date. The expected fulure payments include those estimates in relation to claims
Ineurred but not enough reported {IBNER's) and claims Incurred but not reported (IBNR's) based on past
experience. ‘

Claims incurred &ll relate to providing services, Including the bearing of risk, and are accordingly treated as
expenses n the statement of profit or loss and other iomprehensive income. Claims expenses ropresent total
claim payments made during the year adjusted for the movement in the outstanding claims Hability.

The claims liability is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appointed actuary whose key
assumptions are outlined in note 6.

(f) Other expenses

Other expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on an accruals
basis.

Basis of apportionment
Apportionment of expenses has been made as follows:

» all expenses have been apportioned betwean policy acquisition, policy maintenance and investment
management in line with the principles set out in the Prudential Standard LPS 340 Valuation of Policy
Liabilities issued by APRA.

+ expenses, which are directly attributable to an individual policy or product, are allocated directly to the
statutory fund within which that class of business is conducted; and
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15 Summary of signiflcant accounting policies {continued)
{fi Other expenses (continued) .

Basis of apportionment (continued)

« allindirect expenses chargad to the proﬁt or loss are equitably apportioned to each class of business.
The apportionment is in accordance with Division 2 Part 6 of the LIA.

{g} Outwards reinsurance premium

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense In accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service
received. Accordingly, a portion of outwards reinsurance premium is treated at the reporting date as deferred
reinsurance expense. Reinsurance recoveries on claims incurred are recognised as revenue.

(h} Income tax
Australlan company

Income tax in the profit or loss for the periods presented comprises cumrent and deferred tax. Income tax is
recegnised in the profit or loss except to the axtent that it relates to items recognised directly In equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacied at the balanee date, and any adjustment to {ax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred tex is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounis of assets and liabilities for financial reporling purposes and the amounts used for {axation
purposes.

The measurement of deferrad tax reflects the fax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Company expects, ai the end of the reporting period, to recover or setile the cartying amount of its assats and
liabilities.

A deferred tax asset Is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utllised. Deferred tax assets are reduced o the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Defarred 1ax assets and fabilities are recognised on a gross basis, and presented net if the Company has a
legally enforceabie right to set off curent tax assets and liabllities. Cumrent tax assets and tax liabilities are offsef
where the enfity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settla on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and seitle the Fability simultaneously.

- Tax consolidation

On 24 November 2015, the Company exited from the GE Capital Holdings Parinership income tax consolidated
group. Prior to its axit from the GE Capital Heldings Partnership income tax consolidated group, the Company
pakd to GE Capital Holdings Parinership a clear exit payment which was determined in accordance with the
consolidated group’s Tax Sharing Agreement,

On 25 November 2015, the Company joined the KVD Australia Holdco Pty Lid income tax consolidated group.
The KVD Australia Holdoo Pty Lid income tax consolidated group Incorporates the Company, Hallmark General
Insurance Company Ltd and several other ralated entities.

The current and deferred tax amounts for the tax consolidated group zre allocated amongst the entities in the
group using a separate taxpayor within the group approach whereby each entity in the income tax consolidated
group measurss its current end deferred taxes as if it continued to be & separete taxable entity in its own right,
after deducting intercompany dividends, the benefit of any capital losses brought forward and intercompany debt
forgiveness transactions.
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15 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{h) Income tax (continuad)
Tax consolldation (continued)

The members of the KVD Australia Holdeo Piy Lid income tax consolidated group have enterad into a tax funding
agreement which sets out the funding obligations of the members of the income tax consclidated group In respect
of tax amounts. The tax funding agreement was executed on 23 November 2015 and the Company was
subsequently added, Under the tax funding agreement, where the member of the income tax consolidated group
recagnises a faxable loss, the funding amount is nil with no compensation for the tax losses unless the member
is subject to prudential regulation by APRA, in which case the regulated entity will be compensated for its tax
losses.

The liabilities arising for the member undar a tax funding agreement are recognised as amounts payable to KVD
- Australla Holdeo Pty Ltd - the head entity of the KVD Australia Holdco Pty Ltd income tax consolidated group.
Any difference between the net tax amounts recognised on a separate taxpayer within the group approach and
the actual tax funding agreement amount payable is treated as an equity transaction.

The members of the KD Australia Holdco Pty Ltd income tax consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing
agreement under the tax cansclidation legisiation which sets out the allocation of income tax liabilities between
the entities should the head entity default on ts tax payment obligations and removes the exposure of the
Company to jeint and several lability in the event of such default. The tax sharing agreement was executed on 23
MNovember 2015 and the Company weas subsequently added.

New Zealand branch

Tax-¢ffact accounting s applied using the fiability method whereby tax is recognised as an expense and Is
calculsted after allowing for permanent differences. To the exient that differences occur between the ime items
are recognised in the financial statements and when items are taken into account in determining taxable Income
(timing differences}, the related future taxation benefit and deferred income tax liability are disciosed a8 a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liabllity, respectively.

Income tax legislation was passed introducing a new iaxation framework for life insurance business in New
Zealand. Such rules were designed to ensure that term insurance business Is taxed on actual profits and applies
to life insurance policies incepting on or after 1 July 2010. Term life insurance policies in force at 30 Juns 2010
are grandfathered (for & mited period) and taxed under the previous rules. However, an election exists whereby
such policles may be taxed under the new rules. The Branch has chosen to grandfather all of its palicies and the
fncome tax expense for the period has been calculated on this basis.

Statutory funds

Taxaftion bases

The principal elements for the calculation of the taxable incoma for sach class of business for the different bases
for caloulating tax are as follows:

Assessable income
Shareholder funds and ordinary life insurance business - Eamed premiums and invastment income.

Other business - Accident and disability premiums earned and Investment income.
New Zealend business - The greater of the life insurer base (investment income less expenses plus underwriting
profit), and the policyholder base (net value added to policies plus underwriting profit, grossed up for tax). This
applies up 1o 30 June 2010 after which the new income tax rules come into effect.

The gains and losses on sale of invesiments are taxed primarily under the ordinary Income provisions, with the
capital gains tax provisions potentially applying depending on the circumstance.

40



Haillmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financlal statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(continuad)

15 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(R) Income tax (continued)

Statutory funds (continued)

Taxation bases (continued)

Allowable deductions

The allowable deductions for each taxable class of business In Australia include:
- Acquisition costs;

- Other expenses referable to the business; and

- An aliocetion of the general management expenses of the Company

These deductions are then allocated to each class of business in accordance with the basis specified In the
Income Tax Assessment Act.

Allowable deductions in respect of "other business" within the Australian Life Fund also include accident and
disability claims and the movement during the pariod in the policy liability in respect of that businass. Allowable
deductions for all insurance products include claims and the mavement during the perlod in the policy liability.

{) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, daposits held
at call with financial institutions, other shor-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

{i) Loans and other receivables

All premiurn and other recelvables are recognised at the amounts receivable as these amounts are generally due
for settlement within 30 days and less, where applicable, any provision for doublful debis. Collectability of
premium and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debis which are known to be uncollectibie ara
written off in the period in which they are identified.

(k) Reinsurance and other racovaries raceivable

Relnsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reperted claims not yet paid and IBNR's are
recognlsed as revenue. Recoveries recelvable are assessed In a manner similar to the assessment of the Hability
for outstanding clsims and pollcy llabilldes. -

(I} Classification of insurance confracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder or another party by
agrasing fo compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future avent adversaly
affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as msuranoe contracts. The risks associated with
Insurance contracts are detailed further in nofe 8{a).

{m} Assets backing policy liabiiitles

The Company has elected to designate =zl its financial assets backing insurance policles at fair value through
profit or loss.
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15 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) Financlal assets

The Company has elected to designate all its financlal assets at fair value through profit and loss consistent with
the provisions of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets designated at fair valua through profit or loss and are initlally recognised at fair value, excluding
iransaction costs, which are expensed In the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Financial assefs are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date with realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value recognised in the profif or loss in the perod in which they arise.

Classification

{l Short term daposits

Short term deposits are canied at the face value of the amounts depositad as their carrying amounts approximate
to their fair value.

(i) Unfisted fixed interest securities

Unlisted fixed interest securities are recorded at amounts based on valuations using rates of interest equivalent
to the yields obtainable on comparsble investments at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are required to be further categorised under AASE 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
according to the availabllity of observable market inputs used In the measuremeant of their fair values, which is
detailed further in rote 2¢h).

(o) Investment in controlled entity
Investment In controlled entities Is carried at cost kess impalrmeant.
{p) Impalrment of asseis

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax asseis, are assessod
annually for indicators of impairment, if any such indicator exists, then the asset's recoversble amount is
estimated.

An impaiment loss Is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount.
Racoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal end value in use. Impalrment
losses are recognised in the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been re-valued, in which case the
Impairment loss s recognised as a raversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised
through the profit or loss.

Whers an impairment ioss subsequently reverses, the camying amount is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverabla amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment bsen recognised for the asset In prior years. A reversal of an
impairment is recognised Immediately in the profit or loss.

{q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent abilittes for goods and services provided 1o the Company prior to the end of
the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of
recognition.

{r} Liability adequacy test

The adequacy of the insurance coniract liabilities are evaluated each year. The Insurance contract test considers
current estimates of all contraclual and related cash fiows. if & is determined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortfall exists, 1t Is Immediately recognised in the profit or [oss.
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15 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{s) Policy liabilitles

Policy habilities for fife insurance contracts in the Statement of Financial Position and the increase/{decrease) in
policy liabilities for life insurance contracts in the profit or loss have been calculated using the Margin on Services
methedology outlined in note 15(c). ’

{t) Pcolicy acquisition costs

The actual acquisition costs incurred are recorded in the profit or loss. The value and future recovery of these
costs is assessed in determining the policy llabilities. This has the effeci that acquisition costs defarred are
amortised over the perlod that they will be recovered from premiums or policy charges.

{u) Foreign currency translation and functional currency

Functional and presentafion currency

ltems included in the financlal statements of the Company are measured using the cumency of the primary
economic enviranment in which the Company operates {the functionat currency).

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency for
the Company.

Transactions and balances .
Fareign currency transactions are {ranslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in forelgn currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

Translation differences on financial instruments carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss.

The results and financial position of a Statutory Fund of the Company that has a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

The results and financial position of the branch of the Company that has a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

» assets and llabllities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

+ income and expenses are franslated at average exchange rates (unless this is mot & reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case Income
and expanses are translated at the dates of the fransactlons); and

= all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.
(v} Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and sefvice tax (GST), except where
the amount of GST incurred i not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Cffice (ATO). In these circumstances
the GET is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Recaivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable o,
the tax authoroties (f.e ATO and IRD) is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial
position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST componentis of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO, are classified as operating cash flows.




Hallmark Life insurance Company Lid
Motes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2015
{continued)

15 Summary of significant accounting policles (c_:ontinued)
(w) Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission, relating to the rounding off of amounts in the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated,amounts
in the financial statements have baen rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand
dollars, or in certain cases, the nearsest dollar.

(x} New accounting atandards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and Interpretations are effective for annuat periods
beginning after 1 January 2015, and have nct been applied in preparing these finangial statements. None of
these is expacted to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company, except for;

- AASB 9 Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the Company's 2018 financial statements and
could change the classification and measurement of financial asseis. The Company does not plan to adopt this
standard early and the extent of the impact has not besn determined.

- AASB 15 Revenue from confracts with customers, which becomes mandatory for the Company's 2018 financial
statements, provides a new 5 step model for recognising revenue earned from a contract with a customer and will
replace the existing AASE 118 Revenue. The Company does not plan te adopt this standard early and the extent
of the impact has not been determined.




Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Directors' declaration
31 December 2015

Directors' declaration
In the opinion of the directors of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid (the Company):

(a) the financlal statements and notes set out on pages 5 to 44 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

{i} giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

{ii) complyling with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Reguialions 2007,

{b) thefinandial statements also comply with International Financlal Reporting Standards as disclosed In note
15; and

{c}  there are reasonable grounds to balieve that the Company will be able to pay its debfs as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with & resolution of directors:

L\_/
0Anne Maree Stephanson (Chairma'n}
Director

Sydney
17 March 2016

A

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Director)
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hallmark Life Insurance
Company Ltd

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
(the Company), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015,
and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, notes 1 to 15 comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors’
declaration. ' Co

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control ag the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. In note 15, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial

~ statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Austratian Auditing Standards. These Auditing

Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requiremenis relating to audit .
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,

in¢luding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting’ -
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporarions Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s
financial position and of its performance.

KPMG, an Ausiralien partnership and & member

firrm of the KPMG natwork of independent member

firms affillated with KPMG International Cooperative  Liability lirnited by a scheme approved upder
FKPMG Intemational™), a Swiss entity. Professional Stendards Legislation.




‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁment and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the mdependence reqmrements of the
Corporations Act 2001. .

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

{a) the financial report of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd is in accordance w:th the
Corporations Act 2001, mc]udmg

(i} giving a true and fair -view of the Company’s ﬁnanéial position asat3] Decemﬁer 2015
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 15.

7. L VT
KPMG

Andrew Reeves
Partner

Sydney
17 March 2016
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29 March 2016
The Board of Directors
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Level 4, 39 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060

Hallmark Life tnsurance Company Ltd:
Appointed Actuary signoff of financial statements and financial condition as at
31 December 2015 for New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd ("HLIC") is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulatory Autherity ("APRA™) and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand ("RBNZ"}.

On 1 March 2014, HLIC appointed me, Brendan Counsell of Ernst & Young to be HLIC's Appointed Actuary.
The Appointed Actuary role is as described by the Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 and related
Prudential Standards and Prudential Practice Guides current at 31 December 2015, and by the

New Zealand Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship with HLIC other
than being its Appointed Actuary.

It is the responsibility of the Appointed Actuary to provide advice to the Board of a life insurer on the value
of its policy liabilities and the preparaticn of the actuarial information contained in its financial statements.
The Appointed Actuary must provide written advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of policy
liabilities in accordance with APRA's Prudential Standard LPS320, Actuarial and Related Matters.

As part of my responsibilities, | have produced a report on HLIC's policy liabilities and financial condition,
the Financial Condition Report {FCR), as at 31 December 2015, dated 10 March 2016. The scope of the
FCR is to provide the Board and management with an objective assessment of the financial condition of the
Australlan and New Zealand business within HLIC as at 31 December 2015. The FCR identifies and
assesses the material risks facing HLIC and includes discussion of relevant risk mitigants.

| have relied upon the general completeness and accuracy of this data and information supplied by HLIC
without independent verification. However, | have reviewed the information for reasonableness and
consistency with my knowledge of the financial services industry.

The RBNZ has exempted HLIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business.
This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the Appointed
Actuary. These obligations are addressed below. Where relevant and appropriate, | have commented on
total HLIC Company level results and also separately in relation to the results of the New Zealand Branch
(Statutory Fund 2) of HLIC. '

Financial Statements - HLIC Company

Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particular:

a. The Policy Liability

b. The reinsurance and other recovery asset(s) relevant to the Policy Liability, or relevant to outstanding
claims reserves or incurred but not reported claims reserves held outside of the Policy Liability

Any deferred or other tax asset relevant to the Policy Liability
d. Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue relevant to the Policy Liability

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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e. The unvested policyholder benefits liability
f.  Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the purpose of
profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review
required under Section 77. | confirm that the FCR, and its appendices, meets the requirements of section
78 of the Act, as it contains my advice regarding policy liabilities, reinsured policy liabilities, and deferred
acquisition costs (implicit in the policy liabilities). The FCR also includes advice on IBNR and capital
requirements, which form part of the financial statements. No advice or review is required of unvested
policyholder benefits liability, as HLIC does riot write any participating products.

In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HLIC financial statements has been appropriately included in
those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HLIC financial
statements,

1 have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of'any other
information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

Financial Statements - HLIC New Zealand Branch (Statutory Fund 2)
Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appainted Actuary of the actuarial information in the
New Zealand Branch financial statements and in particular:

a. The Policy Liability

b. The reinsurance and other recovery asset(s) relevant to the Policy Liability, or relevant to outstanding
claims reserves or incurred but not reported claims reserves held outside of the Policy Liability

Any deferred or other tax asset relevant to the Policy Liability
Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue relevant to the Policy Liability

The unvested policyholder benefits liability

P a0

Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the purpose of
profit or solvency reporting

... Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review
required under Section 77. | confirm that the FCR, and its appendices, meets the requirements of section
78 of the Act, as it contains my advice regarding policy liabilities, reinsured policy liabilities, and deferred
acquisition costs (implicit in the policy liabilities). The FCR also includes advice on IBNR and capital
requirements, which form part of the financial statements. Separate input has been provided regarding
actuarial inputs to tax calculations in New Zealand. No advice or review is required of unvested
policyholder benefits liability, as HLIC does not write any participating products.

In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HLIC New Zealand Branch financial statements, has been
appropriately includad in those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HLIC New Zealand
Branch financial statements.

1 have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of any other
information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reporting.
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Financial Condition Report

The Appointed Actuary must prepare a Financial Condition Report which must:

a. Identify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the appointed actuary to be
aware) facing a licensed insurer that, in the appointed actuary’s opinion, pose a threat to the licensed
insurer’s ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where practicable
quantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in (a)

c. Comment separately on the New Zealand business, these comments can be in line with Australian
requirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the Appointed Actuary’s opinion, the iicensed insurer needs
to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the licensed
insurer’s forward-looking assessment of the solvency standard and the appointed actuary’s assessment
of the licensed insurer’s business plans, its enterprise risk management practices and the external
environment.

The Appointed Actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as outlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b. Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a
whole, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of regulatory action or
litigation,

The FCR identifies and assesses the material risks facing HLIC and includes discussion of relevant risk
mitigants. These material risks are considered at a company level and also separately for the Australian
and New Zealand business.

Throughout the FCR, key metrics and information have been separated between Statutory Fund 1
(Australia) and Statutory Fund 2 (New Zealand} so that each business can be considered separately from
the company as a whole.

HLIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2015, with excess assets of A$13.2m above
prudential capital requirements in Statutory Fund 1 and A$5.8m in Statutory Fund 2. Both statutory funds,
as well as the Shareholders Fund have exceeded prudential capital requirements over the year to 31
December 2015,

Capital requirements are expected to be met over the coming three years, and hence no reporting under

Section 24 of The Act is required. In my opinien HLIC is maintaining:

a. A solvency margin consistent with the requirements under section 21(2) (b) of the Act

b. Solvency margins for each statutory fund, both in Australian and in New Zealand, consistent with the
requirements under section 21(2) (c) of the Act

This strong position means that both statutory funds, Statutory Fund 1 and 2, of HLIC would be able to
withstand a catastrophe or extreme event similar to the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The New Zealand Branch (Statutory Fund 2) of HLIC is managed in conjunction with the Australian
business and | am not aware of any differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in
comparison with:the insurer as a whole which might have implications if the two were separated.
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Yours sincerely,

,q;wdu— I

Brendan Counsell, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
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New Zealand Branch
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Directors' Report
31 December 2015

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Hallmark Life [nsurance Company Lid
Naw Zaaland Branch for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the auditor's report thereon.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

oAnne Marea Stephenson {Chalrman)

Director

Sydnay
17 March 2016

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Director}
Riractor

Sydney
17 March 2016

The above Stalement of Financisl Pasition should be read in confunction with the accompanying noles.
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insurance premium revenue
Qubwards reinsurance premium expense
Net insurance premium revenue

Investment income
Total revenue

Claims expenses
Net claims Ingurred

Net (increase)decrease in policy Hability

Adrministration expenses
Total claims and expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Profit is attributable to:

Owners of Hallmark Life Insurance Coempany Ltd New Zealand

Branch

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:
Owners of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid New Zealand

Branch

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incoma
For the yaar anded 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Notes $'000 $'000
1(a) 7,212 9,823
() {1

7211 9,822

1(b) 932 1,461
8,143 11283

1c) 3,048 4,200
3,048 4,200

(1,879) (905)

1(d) 2,738 4,071
3,807 7,366

4,326 3917

1(e) 1,407 1,089
2,620 2,828

2,929 2,828

2,829 2,828

2,929 2,828

The above Statement of Profif or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the

Rccompanying nofes.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Current tax assets

Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Gross poficy lizbilities
Total liabilitles

Net assets

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Total equity

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid New Zealand Branch
Statement of Financlal Position
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Motes £'000 $'000
2{a) 11,550 44,874
2{b} 757 358
41 -
2c) - 1,008
12,348_ 46,241
2(e) 836 1,099
- 1,056
3(a) 260 355
22y 5,203 7,182
6,209 9,602
6,049 36,549
6,049 36,548
6,049 36,549

The above Stafement of Financial Position should be read in cénjuncfion with the accompanying notes.

3
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Halimark Life tnsurance Company Lid New Zealand Branch
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Cther comprehensive income
Total comprehenshve Incoma for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit for the yaar
Qther comprehansive Incomna
Total comprehansiva Incoma for the year

Transactions with cwners in their capaciy as owners:
Cividends patd
Balance at 31 Decamber 2015

Attributakle to owners of
Hallmark Life Insurance Company
: Lid New Zealand Branch

Ratalned Total
earnings equity
$'000 £'000
33.721 37
2,828 2,828
2,828 2,828
36,549 36,549
36,549 26,849
2,929 2,929
2,929 2,929
(33,420) (33,429)
6,049 5,049

The ahove Statemsnt of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Notes $'000 $'o00
Cash flows from operating activities
Premiums received 85,207 7,150
Qutward reinsurance expense ) (1)) (1)
Claims paid (1,146) {1.508)
Payments to suppliers and employees (2,203) (3,603}
Interest recelved 1,081 1,462
Ingome taxes paid (2,749) {770}
Feas and commissions paid ' {1,003 (1,325)
Nat cash {outflow) inflow from operating activities 4(a) {904 1,405
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from held-to-maturity investments 1,009 -
Payment to parent company {33.429) -
Net cash (outfiow) inflow from investing activitles {32,420) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities - -
Net {decrease) Increase in cash and cash equivalents {33,324) 1,405
Cash and cash equivatents at 1 January 44,874 43,469
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2(a) 11,550 44874

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes.
5



Halimark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015

Contents of the notes to the financial statements

Financial performance
1 Profit or loss information
Balance sheet management
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities
3 Non-financiad assets and liabllities
4 Cash flow information
Rlsk
Critical estimates, judgsments and errors
Actuarial assumptions and methods
Financial risk management

@ N O th

Capltal management
Unrecognised items
9 Commitments and contingendies
10 Matters subsequent to the end of the financial yaar
Other Information
11 Remunsration of auditors
12 Kay management personnel disclosuras
13 Related party transactions
14  Summary of significant accounting policies

G
31 December 2015

Page
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14
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24
24
24
24
24
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

Financlal performance

This seciion provides additional informalion about those individual line iiems in the financial statements, relating
to finandial peformance, that management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

1 Profit or loss information

(a) insurance premlum revenue

2015 2014

$°000 $000
Diract life insurance pramiums 1,212 9,823
Outwards reinsurance premium expense ()] (1)
Total insurance premijum revenue 7,21 0,822
{h) Investment income

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Interest income 932 1,461
Total investment Income 932 1,461
{c) Claims expanses

2015 2014

£000 $000
Death and disability 857 1,208
Unemployment 4 43
Terminations of policies 2187 2,951
Total claims expenses 3,048 4,200
{d) Administration axpenses

2015 2014

§'000 $000
Policy maintenance 2,030 2,558
Foreign exchange {gains) {365) (34)
Palicy acquisition cost - others 50 41
Policy acquisition cost - commission 1,003 1,423
Cther expenses 10 39
Investment management expenses 10 44
Total administration expenses . 2738 4,071

7
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Halimark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

1 Profit or loss information {continued)

{e) Income tax expense

" {i) Income fax axpense

Current {ax expense

Deferred tax (note 3(a))

Adjustmendts for current tax of prior periods
Income tax expense

(i Numerical reconciliation of income lax expense fo prima facie {ax payable

Profit from continuing operations before iIncome tax expense
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% (2014 - 28%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)
in caloulating taxable Income:
Tax sffect on actuarial adjustment - policyholder base

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Income tax expense

{f) Statement of sources of operating profit

The sharehoiders’ operating profit after Income tax of the statutory
funds is represented by:

Invesiment earnings on shareholders' retained and capital

Emeargence of shareholders® planned profits

Experience profit

Shareholdars' oparating profit after income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2015
. (continued)
2015 2014
£000 $000
1,337 1,074
(95) (80)
165 105
1,407 1,089
2015 2014
$'000 $000
4,336 3,017
1,214 1,087
28 (80)
1,242 1,017
165 T2
1,407 1,089
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
517 818
1,134 1,322
1,278 6845
2,929 2,785
8
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Halimark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to tha financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015

Balance sheet management

{continued)

This section provides additional information about those individual line items in the financial statements relating to
financial peformance that management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

2 Financial assets and financlal liabilities
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014
$'000 $000
Cash at bank ' 3,040 2,306
Short term deposits 8,510 42,568
Total cash and cash equivalents 11,550 44,874
{b) Trade and other receivahles
2015 2014
$'000 3000
Investment income acorued and receivable 27 178
Other receivables 730 182
Total trade and other receivables 757 358
Classification of total trade and ciher receivabies
Current 757 B8
Non-current - -
) 787 358
These balances include amounts receivable from related parties (note 13).
{c) Financlat assets at fair value through profit or loss
2015 2014
$'000 $000
Debt securities - national government bonds - 1,009
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 1,008
Classification of financial assefs at fair value through profif or loss
Current - -
Non-current 1,009
- 1,099

9
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financlal statements

For the year ended 31 De

cember 2115
(continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities

{d) Policy liabilities

{) Reconcifiation of movemenis in life insurance coniract policy liabilities

Gross life insurance contraci liabilitias

Balance at 1 January

Decrease in life insurange contract liabillities reflected in the profit or loss
Closing balance at 31 Dagember

Classification of total life insuranica contract Nablities
Current
Mon-current

{f) Componenis of net life Insurance conlract liabilities

Best astimate [iability - far non investment linked businass

Future policy benefits (Note (2) balow)
Unrecouped acquisition expenses
Totat best estimate abitity

Value of future shareholder profit margins (Note 1 balow)

Net policy ltabilites

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

7,182 8,087

(1,979) (905)

5,203 7.162

2,968 3,686

2,235 3,496

' 5,303 7,182
2015 2014
$'000 $000

5,777 7.821

574 639

5,203 7,162

5,203 7,182

{1) This item is not spaciically calculated under the accumulation met_hod.

(2) This item includes the unearned premium component of the lability. The accurnulation method has been
used fo calculate liabiliies, and companents relating to expenses and profits are not separataly

caleulated.

10
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Hallmarik Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financlal staiements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
{d) Poliey liabilities
(i} Capital requirements of the lifa funds

The branch is required to hold prudsntial reserves, over and abova the policy liabilities, as a buffer agalnst
advarse future experience and poor investment returns. Life and General Insurers are required to follow the
relevant Prudential Standards as prescribad by APRA. The required level of capital for regulatory purposes {the
prescribed capital amount, or PCA) is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a life insurer is
exposed and a life company must ensure that the life company and each of its statutory funds has, at all times, a
capital base in excess of its PCA (plus any additional amount as required by (APRA)).

The excess cf the branch's capilal base over the PCA as at 31 December 2015 was $6.2 million (2014: $36.7
milllon).

The available assets In the statutory fund have -also exceseded the Prudential Capital Requirement at all times
turing the year ending 31 December 2015,

In addifion o the regulatory capital requiraments, the branch maintains a target surpil'Js providing an additional
capital buffer against adverse events.

2015 23014
$'000 $'000
(a) Capital base 6,460 37,123
{b) Prescribed capiial amount 294 449
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a) - (b) 6,166 36,674
Capital adequacy multiple = (a)/(b) 22.00 §2.63
Capital base:
Net assets 6,049 36,5649
Add: Difference betwean adjusted policy liabilities and policy liabilities 414 574
L ess: Eliminafion of any excess DTAs over DTLs - -
Equals: Capital base 6,460 37,123
Prescribed capital amount:
Aseet risk charge 62 149
Operatlonal risk charge 232 300
Prescribed capital amount 294 449
11
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{continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
{e} Trade and other payables

2015 2014

$'000 £'000
Trade payables 1 1
Other payables 150 144
Palicy claims in the process of setttement 885 954
Total trade and other payables 836 1,099
Classiffcation of tolaf Irade and other payablos
Current i 1,012
Non-current 63 a7

836 1,089

The carrying amount disclosed above approximates fair value at reporting date,
These balances include amounts payable to related parties {hote 13).

{f) Falr value measurement

() Fair value hierarchy

This section expiains the judgemenis and estimates made in dstermining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recagnised and measured at fair value in the financlal statements. To provide an indieation
about the reliability of the inputs used In determining fafr value, the branch has clasgified its financial instruments
into the threa lavels prescribed under the accounting standards. An explanation of aach level follows undemeath
the table. :

Lovel 1 Leval 2 Levet 3 Total
31 December 2015 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Financial assets designated at fair valua
through profit or loss - - - -
Total financial assets - ) - - -
Level 1 Level 2 Laval 3 Total
31 December 2014 . $'000 $000 $'000 $000
Financial assets
Financial assats designated at fair value '
through profit or loss - 1,009 - 1,009
Total financial assets - 1,009 - 1,009

= Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

* Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e, derived from pricas), including quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets. .

= Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodelogy are uncbservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
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(continued)

Financlal assets and financial llabilitles

{f} Falr valua measuremeant (continued)

(if} Valuation technigues used to defermine fair values
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

+ The use of quotad market prices or dealer quotes for simifar instruments.

= thefair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysls.

{iil) Fair valiie measurements using significani unobservable inputs (level 2)

The following iable presents the changes in level 2 items for the periods ended 31 December 2015 and 31

204
$'000

1,089
(30)

1,009

December 2014:
2015
$000
Opening batance at 1 January ' 1,008
Total gains/{losses) recognised in: )

Prafit or loss {8)
Govemnment Bond Maturity (1,001}
Closing balance at 31 December -
3 Non-financial assets and liabillties
(a) Defarrad tax liabilitles

2018
$'000

Non-current

The balance comprises temporary differances attributable to:
Deferred commisslon 260
Deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current

Movements in deferred tax liabilifies were as Tollows:

2014
LAHUH

355

(20}
1

Opening balance at 1 January 355
Chargedf{credited) to profit or loss 1{e} ) (85)
Under/{over) provision in prior years -

Closing balance at 31 Desember 260

355

13

31 December 2015



Halimark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued}

4 Cash flow information

{a) Reconclliation of profit after income tax expense to net cash inflow from operating activities

2018 2014
$'000 $'000
Profit for the year 2929 2,828
Adjustments
Unrealised losses in value of financial assets - 30
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decraase in trade and other receivables {300} 299
(Decrease)increase in trade and oiher payables {263) {1,316)
(Pecreaselincraase in current tax liabilities (1,087) 558
{Dacreasa) in defarred tax liabilities {85) {89)
{Decrease)increase In gross policy liabillies {1,979) {805)
Net cash (outilow}/inflow from operating activities {904) 1,406
Risk

This section of the notes discusses the branch's exposure o varicus rigks and shows how these could affect the
branch’s financial position and performance.

5 Critical estimates, judgements and errors

The branch makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities at ysar
end. Estimates and judgemenis are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of future evenis that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
areas in which accounting estimates are applied are described below. '

{a) LHe Insurance contract labllities

The financial reporiing methodology used to determine the fair value of lifa insurance contract liabilities is referred
to as margin on services {MoS).

Under MoS the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (‘the margin’) is recognised over the life of
the contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service”), hence the
term margin on services. The movement in #fe Insurance contract llabilities recognised in the statement of profit
or [oss and other comprehensive income refiects the planned release of this margin.

The projection method is usually used to determing life Insurance contract liabilities. The net present value of
projected cashflows is calculated using best estimate assumpiions about future evenis. Whaen the benefits under
the life insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on tha expected
future earnings rate of those assels, otherwise, a risk-free discount rate is used.

Where the accumulation method has been used, the liability is based on an unsamed premium reserve, less and
explicit allowance for deferred acquisition costs and a reserve for IBNR's. Where used, the accumulation method
Is considered to be 2 reascnable approximation of liabilities had they been determined on a projection basis. A
summary of the significant actuarial methods and assumptions used is contained in note 6.

{b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also computed using the above methods. In addifion, the
recoverabilily of these assets is assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that the balance is reflective of the
amounts that will ultimately be recelved, taking Intc consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk.
Impairment Is recognised when there Is abjective evidence that the branch may not receive amounts due fo it and
theae amounls can be relisbly measurad.
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{continued)

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods

The effective date of the actuarial report on policy liabilities and capital requirements is 31 December 2015. The
actuarial report was prepared by Mr Brendan Mark Counsell, BSc, BA, FIAA, FNZSA, The actuarial report
indicates that Mr Counsell is satisfied as to the acouracy of the data upon which policy fiabilitles have been
determingd.

The amount of policy liabilities has been determined in accordance with methods and assumptions disclosed in
these finandal statements and the requirements of the relevant accounting standards (which may differ from the
requirements of the Life [nsurance Act).

Policy liabilities far life insurance contracts have been calculated in accordance with Prudential Standard LPS
340 Valuation of Pelicy Liabilities issued by APRA under subsection 230A(1) of the Life Insurance Act. The
prudential standard requires the policy liabilities to bs calculated in a way which allows for the systemaiic release
of planned margins as services are provided to policy owners.

The profit carriers used for the major produst groups in order to achieve the systematic release of planned
margins are as follows:

Product groups Method {projectian or other) Profit carriers
Lurmp sum risk Accumulation (2014: Accumulation) Claims (implied)
Disability and inveluntary unemployment income  Accumulation {2014: Accumuletion)  Claims (implied)

Policy liabilities héve been calculated as the provision for unearmed premium, less a deferred acquisition cost
item. The recognition rate of premium has been chosen to approximate the planned margin release that would ba
achieved through use of the projection method.

Disclosure of assumptions
Assumptions are required to establish recoverability of acquisition costs. Key assumptions are listed below:
{a} Discount rates

The gross inierest rates used are the gross yield to redemption of benchmark government securifies. For the
current valuation, these are:

20 days 2.75% (2014: 3.67%)
5 years 3.00% {2014: 3.61%)
(b) Inflation rates
Allowance for future inflation of 1.0% p.a. is assumed (2014: 1.0% p.a.).

The future Inflation assumption is based on the long term target range of 1% - 3%.
{c} Future expenses and Indexation

Maintenance expense assumptions have been based on the experience in the current year and budgeted
expenses for the year 2016. Inflation adjustments are sensistent with the inflation assumptions.

(d) Mortality and morbidity .

Mortaiity rates for risk preducts have been based on experience over recent years. A loss ratic approach {applied
1o eamed premium) was adopted. The loss ratios used have not varied significantly from those used in 2014,
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{continued)

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Disclosure of assumptions {continuad)

{e} Disability and Involuntary unemployment

The general approach to actuarial estimation of disability and involuntary unemployment liabilities is to analyse all
available past experience. This analysis allows pattemns to ba identified in the past experienca. Based on this,
development patterns associated with the run-off of outstanding claims at the balance date can be estimated.
The estimate of the outstanding claims includes an allowance for clalms incurred but not reported (IBNR) and the
further development of reported daims, a risk margin and claims handling expense provision. Actuarial methods
such as payment per claim incumred (PPCI) and payment per claim open (FPCQ) are adopted to estimate the
oautstanding ¢laims.

The key actuartal assumptions for the determination of the outstanding claims Habilities are claim termination
rate, average ciaim size (disability = NZ$1,214, unemployment = NZ$593), a claims handling expense rate of
13% (2014; 15%}) of the projected gross claim payments {hased on expense investigation) and a discount rate of
2.65% (2014: 3.54%) (based on the vields of 1 year and 2 year Mew Zealand Government bonds) as at 31
December 2015. Across all classes, changes to the claim termination and average claim size assumptions would
causge the most significant change to the liability estimate.

{fi Voluntary discontinuance

Voluntary discontinuance rates vary by product and have been based an the Company’s recent discontinuance
experience.

For the major classes of business, the assumed aggregate rates of discontinuance are:

Consumer credit iInsurences 26% p.a. (2014: 34% p.a.)
Single premium term life insurances <1% p.a. (2014: <1% p.a.)

(g} Capital requirements

The Company is required to hold prudential reserves, over and above the policy liabiliies, as a buffer agalnst
adverse future experience and poor investment returns. The methods and bases used for determining the capital
requiraments were in accordance with the requirements for Prudential Standard LPS 110 Capital Adequacy
issued by APRA. ‘

Impact of changes in assumptions

The policy liabilitles for insurance contracls have been caloulated using the accumulation methed. Under this
method, changes in assumptions do not have any impact on policy liabilities In the current period, unless a
product enfers loss recognition. As at 31 December 2015, the assumption changes have not resulted in any of
the related product groups entering loss recognition, and hence the policy fability has not been impacted by
changes in assumptions. )

The value of future profit margins is not explicitly calculated under the accumulation method and hence the
impact of any change In assumptions on the value of future profit margins is not determined.

Sensitivity analysis

Movements in key variables such as mortality experience, lapse rates and expenses will have an impact on the
future cash flows, performance and net assets of the business.
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{continued)

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods {continued)
Sensltivity analysis [continued)

As the accumulation method is used to determine policy labifities for insurance contracts, changes in the
assumptions around these key varizbles do not have any impact on the policy ifability or retained profits at the
current balance date, unless a product group enters loss recognition. An aliernate approach to demonstrating the
sansitivity to changes in variables Is to conslder the impact on profit and equity at the current balance date if the
axperience aver the current financial period varied under certain scenarios. The table below considers a number
of changes in variables, and shows the impact on the profit and equity if that change had been experienced
during the financial reporting pariod.

Impact on profit or loss Impact on equity

Gross of Met of Gross of Net of

2015 reinsurance reinsurance relnsurance reinsurance
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
Result of changs in variables
Montality/morbidity- worsening by 5% (39) : (39) (39) {39)
Moriality/morbidity- impraving by 5% 39 39 39 39
Lapse rate- worsening by 5% 10 10 10 10
Lapse rate- improving by 5% (10) (109 (109) - {10)
Expenses- worsening by 5% (77) {77) {77} N
Expenses- improving by 5% 77 77 77 7
Impact on profit or [oss _ Impact on equity

Gross of Net of Gross of Net of

2014 reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance relnsurance
$'000 $'000 $000 $000

Result of change in variables
Mortality/morbidity- worsening by 5% (53) (53) . [B3) {53)
Mortality/morbidity- impraving by 5% 53 53 53 £3
Lapse rate- worsening by 5% 16 16 16 16
Lapse rate- improving by 5% (16) {16) (16} {16)
Expenses- worsening by 5% @1) (91) o {91)
Expenses- improving by 5% N a1 o1 21

7 Financial risk management

This note explains the branch's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the branch’s future
financial performance. Current year profit or loss information has been included where relevant to add further
context.

{(a) Transition Risk

Following completion of the sale of GE's consumer business to KVD Austiralia Pty Ltd, operaflonal risk exposures
are higher as servicas provided under the Transilional Services Agreement (TSA) with GE are transferred to
Latitude. This will result in significant change across the business and Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New
Zealand Branch is actively monitering and managing these rigks.

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss due to a counterparty falling to perform their contractual obligations and
principally arises through the branch's investment in financial instruments, receivables from related or other
parties, and claims on reinsurance confracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the branch's exposure 1o cradit risk:
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{continued)

7 Financial rlsk management (continued)
(b) Credi risk

(i} Financial assels

The branch's investment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved by the board. Tha
ouidelines establish credif appraval authorities, concentrations limits, and approved investment portfolio
parameters, these guidelines comply with the GE Capital Corporation Financial Insfitutions Credit Standards
("GECC FICS") policy which sets out concentration limits and additioral portfolio parameters. The Company will
continue to adopt the GECC FICS policy until a new Investment Policy is approved by the Board in 2016.
Management conducts a regular review of the investment holdings, compliance is monitored and exposures or
breachas ara reported to the board. The mandate Is reviswed regularly for pertinance and for changes in the risk
envirohment.

The branch only invests with counterparties that have a credil rating of at least A1/A from Standard & Poor’s
("S&P"). The branch further limits its exposure to credit risk by setting individual exposure limlts. There is no
significant concenfration of credit risk and management does not expect any counterparty io fail o meet its
obligations.

() Reinsurance assels

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management strategy (RaMS).
Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A. The branch further sets its exposure to credit risk by
seiting individual exposure limits. At the end of each reporting period, the management performs an assessment
of the creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the ReMS.

(i) Loans and other receivables

The tranch’s maximum credit risk exposure at balance date is limited to the carrying amount of the financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position. The branch does not have a significant concentration of
credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties (See note 13(b)).

The table below shows the branch’s maximum exposure to credit sk at balance date.

Non- Non- Total
investment Investment neither past Pastdue
Invastment grade grade due nor or

grade satisfactory *unsatisfactory impalred Impaired  Total
2015 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Financial assets ‘
Cash and cash equivalents 11,580 - - 11,850 - 11,560
Trade and other receivables - 757 - 757 - 757
Financial assets at fair value
through prefit or loss
Debt securities - - - - - -
Total credit risk exposure 11,550 757 ] - 12,307 - 12,307
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(continued)
.7 Financial risk management (continued)
(b} Creditrisk
Non- Non- Total
investment  investment neither past Past due
Investment grade grade due nor or
grade satisfactory *unsatisfactory impalred impaired  Total
2014 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £°000
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 44,874 - - 44 874 - 44,874
Trade and other receivables - 358 - 358 - 358
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or foss
Debt securities 1,009 - - 1,008 - 1,009
Total credit risk
exposure 45,883 358 - 45,241 - _ 48241

* A receivable is deemed safisfactory when management is satisfied that the obligor has the capacity to meet its

financial obligations.

The table below classifies the financial assets of the branch by counterparty S&P credit rating.

Not
ARA AA A BBB rated Total
2015 $'000 $000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financlal Assets
Cash - - 11,550 - - 11,550
Trade and ofher receivables* - - - - 757 757
Financial assets ai fair value through
profit or loss
Debt securities - - - - - -
Total cradit risk
exposure - - 11,550 - 757 12,307
2014
Financial Assets
Cash - - 44 874 - - 44,874
Trade and other receivablas* - - - - 358 358
Financial assets at fair value through
prafit or loss
Debt securities - 1,009 - - - 1,009
Total credit risk
axposure . 1,009 44.874 - 358 46,241
* The receivables are largely with related parties, refer te note 13(b).
No receivables are past due or impaired at balance date {201 4: Nil).
19
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(continuead)

7 Financial risk management (continued)

(e} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the branch will not be abla to maei its financial obligations as they fall due. The
branch’s objective and funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and diversity of funding sources to mest actual
and contingent liabilities in both steble and advarse market conditions.

The branch’s fiquidity is primarily monitored through the production of the statement of cash flows for board
review. Pariodic review of the maturity profile of the branch's financlal assets and llabflities is performed to ensure
sufficient liquidity is maintained.

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of undiscounted contractual cash flows associated with the
branch’s financial iabllitles at balance date, excluding Insurance liabliitles.

Uptoa Over 8

year 1-2years 2-5 years years No term Total
2015 $'o00 $'o00 $'000 $'000 $'000 §$'000
Trade and other payables 151 - - - - 151
Policy claims in process of seftlement 622 47 16 - - 685
Gross policy liahilities 2,968 1,204 869 162 - 5,203
Net principal abilities 3.7 1,251 885 162 - 6,039
2014
Trade and other payables 145 - ) - - - 145
Policy claims in process of settlement 867 66 21 - - 8954
Gross pollcy liabllities 3,686 1,682 1,612 202 - 7,182
Net principal Nabilities 4,698 1,748 1,633 202 - 8,281

The branch's financial assets and liabilities are carried In the statement of financial position at amounts that
approximate fair value.

(d) Markef risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of its financial instruments or future cash flows will decrease due to
changes in external economic variables such as Interest rates, currency rates and equity prices.

The board is responsible for developing and manitoring the risk management policies of the branch in relation to
market risk. The branch's invasiment activities follow the GE Capital Corporation (BGECC) Financial Institution
Credit Standards {FICS) policy. The GECC FICS policy document outlines the level of accaptabla market risk,
including counterparty ratings and exposure levels that apply 1o the Investment activities of companies within the
GECC Group. The Company will continue to adopt the GECC FICS policy until 2 new Investrent Policy is
approved by the Board in 2016.

() Cisrency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of recognised asseis and Nabilities or the cash flows from possible future
fransactions, that are denominated in a currency, ofher than that of the functional currency, will decrease due fo
changes in market exchange rates.

The branch has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material.
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(continued}

7 Financial risk management (continued)

{d) Market risk

() Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrumments will fluciuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table analyses the impact of a reasenable possible movemsnt in markel interest rates on the
branch'’s operating results.

Impact on
Change profit
Carrying in before
amount varlables tax impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over §
year 1-2years 2-5years years
2015 $'000 % $00n $'000 $'000 $o0p %000 . $'000
Financial agsets
Short term deposits 8,510 -1 (85) {61) - - - &Y
Debt securities - -1 - - - - - -
8,510 (85) (61) - - - (61)
Impact on
Change profit
Carrying in before
amount varlables tax Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2 years 2-Syears Yyears
2014 $'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $'600 $'000
Financial assets
Short term deposits 42,568 -1 {426) {306) - - - (306)
Debt securities 1,009 - (19) - (7 - - {7)
43,577 {436) {306) {7) - - (313)

This analysls is performed on the same basis for 2014 and assumes that all other variables remain the same.

(i) Price risk

Price risk Is the risk that the fair value of equities or financial instruments could decrease dua to fluctuations in
market prices.

The branch has no such price risk exposure at balance date. {2014: Nil}
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{continued})

8 Capital management

The branch's capital management strategy plays a central role in managing capital risk arising from the business
activities of the branch, providing an appropriate level of capital to protect policyholders’ interests and satisfy
regulators. The strategy seeks to ensure sufficient capiial Jevels are maintained in both stable and adverse
market eonditions.

The branch has adcpted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management to manage its capital
position. The target surplus levet has been set wiih reference to a range of risks and possible adverse scenarios
faced by the branch.

The branch has net assels in excess of the adopted target surplus requirement, reflecting its current strong
capital position.

In addition to the branch's target surplus policy, extemnal solvency requirements are set and regulated by the
APRA. The branch calculates its solvency position according fo the relevant prudentlal standards which ensures
sufficient solvency margins within the life statutory funds are maintained. An insurer's solvency position is
expected 1o be adequate for the size, business mix, complexity and risk profile of its business.

It is the branch's policy to hold solvency position in excess of those required by APRA eccording to its target
surplus policy, the solvency level is regularly monitored to minimise the risk of a reguiatory breach.

For detailed Information on the branch's solvency position and the sclvency requirements of APRA, refer note
2(d ).

{a} Risk management
Insurance contracts

An insurance contract 5 2 contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the
policyholdar by agreeing to compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future event non-spedific fo the
policy holder that will adversely affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty surrounding the
probability and timing of the insured event occumming, and the magnltude of its effect. Insurance risk is assessod
by the branch at a conlract leve) on its inception and is perindically reassessed as the risk may vary during the
period of insurance cover.

The majority of direct Insurance contracts written are enierad into on a standard form basis, There are no special
term and cenditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The policies written consists mainly of consumer credit life insurances and term life insurances. The ferm
insurance policies caver mainly death, but in some cases terminal ilness. Guaranteed benefits are paid on death
or terminal liness. o
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8 Capital management (continued)

insurance risk management

insurance risk management is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financial impact of events
that may require setilement by the insurer; and the ability of the branch to mitigate the financial impact of these
events an its operating results.

In accordance with prudential standards CPS 220 Risk Management and LPS 230 Reinsurance for Life
Companigs issued by APRA, the board and senior management of the branch have developed, implemented and
mginiainad a sound and prudent risk management stratagy (RMS} and a reinsurance management strategy
{ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS Identify the branch's policies, procedures, processes and controls that address all known
material risks, financial and non-financial, arising from the business. Annually, the board certifies to APRA that
adequate strategies have been put in place to monitor those risks, that systems are in place fo ensure
compliance with legislative and prudenfial requirements, and that the board has salisfied iiself as to the
compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMs are detailed further below.

() Underwrifing sirategy .

The board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the branch has the ability to meet the insurance
needs of the policy holders and fo ensure the ability to pay benefits and claims when due. The strategy involves
the identification of risks by type, impact and likelihcod and involves the application of mathematica! modelling to
determine that products are appropriately priced.

(it Reinsurance sirategy

A conservative approach is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the branch and where
deemed zpproprigte will spread the risk mssociated with the insured events according to its ReMS. All
reinsurance treaties are subject to analytical and statistical modelling to ensure that they offer a sufficient level of
cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment with the ReMS of the branch.

For the branch's main term life product lines in New Zealand, two relnsurance treaties provide surplus
reinsurance cover. The branch considers this 1o be a relatively conservative retention level considering the level
of sums insured written and the capital posltion of the branch. No reinsurance is in place for the branch's
consumer credit Insurance products.

{ii} Claims managerment

Strict claims managaemsnt procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in accordance wilh
policy conditions. Claim outcomes are monitored to track the actual versus expected experience of the portiolio,
with feedback delivered to underwriting and product development.

{v) Concentration of insurance risk

The branch's portfolio of products and policy holders is sufficiently diversified such that there 1s no malerial
concentration of insurance risk.
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(continued)

Unrecognised items

This section of the notes provides information about Hems that are not recognised in the financial statements as
they do not (yet) satisfy the recognition criteria.

9 Commitments and contingencies
As at 31 December 2015, the branch had no contingencles (2014: nil).

10 Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has signlficantly affacted or may significantly
affect:

-»  the branch's operations; or
« the rasults of those operations; or

» the branch's state of affairs.

Other information

This section of the notes includes other Information that must be disclosed to comply with the accounting
standards and cther pronouncements, but that is not immediately related to individual line items in the financial
statements.

11 Remuneration of auditors
No remuneration to auditors has been recognised; this axpanse was incurred by the parent of the branch,

12 Key management personnel disclosures

Any remuneration received by the directors weas received in their capacity as directors of Hallmark Life Insurance
Company Ltd.
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13 Related party transactions
(a) Transactions with related partles
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2015
$
Managemoent fegs paid fo:
Halimark Life Insurance Company Lid 1,870,975
Hest insurance depreciation and administrative costs recharges:
GE Finance and Insurance Pty Lid 120,191
Latitude Financial Services Lid - NZ - 25,346
Royalty paid:
GE Capital Registry, Inc. 47972
Commission paid to:
GE Finance and Insurance Pty Ltd 901,870
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ 101,090
(b) Outstanding balances with related partles
2015
$
Receivables/{payables)
Halimark Life insurance Company Lid 104,423
GE Finance and {nsurance Pty Ltd -
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ 625,480

{continued)

2014

2,684,977

218,885

48,860

1,423,500

2014

373,965
400,708

No provisions for doubiful debts have been raised In relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has

been recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

14 Summary of significant accounting policies

Genaral information

These are the financlal stalements of the New Zealand branch of Hallmerk Life Insurance Company Lid (the
Company}. Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch fthe branch) is registered under the

Companies Act 1993,
The parent entity of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd is Latitude Parsonal Finance Pty Ltd.
For the purposes of the financial siatements, the branch is a for-profit entity.

The ultimate parent entify of Hallmark Life Insurance Company is KVD Australia Holdeo Pty Ltd.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 17 March 2016.
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financlal statements

For the year ended 31 Decomber 2015

{continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basls of preparation ' '

Statement of compliance

This general purpose financial report covers the branch as a single entity and has been proepared in accordance
‘wiﬂ-a New Zealand equivalants to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).

This financial report complies with International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS) zs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)} and New Zealand equivalents fo International Financial
Reporiing Standards (NZ IFRS). The branch is a reporting entity for the purpase of the Financisl Reporting Act
1993 and its financial staterments comply with that Act.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis with certain exceptions as described in the
accounting policies below.

Change in accounting policies
There has been no change in accounting policies for the current financial period.

{b) Principles for life Insurance business

Activitias of the life insurance aparations

The life hsurance operations of the beanch are conducted within a separate statutery fund as required by the
Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 (LIA). The life insurance operations of the branch comprise the selling and
administralion of life insurance contracts. 'n addition, the business has consumer credit disability and
unemployment Insurances, for which APRA has granted an exemption fo treat as life insurance for the purpose of
the LIA.

Life insurance contracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as
significant ¥ and only if, an Insured event could cause an Insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any
scenario, excluding scenarios thet lack commercial substance (i.e. have no discemible sffect on the economics of
the transaction). Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on the ocourrence of a
specified event such as death, injury or disability caused by accident or iliness. The insured benefit is either not
finked or only partly linked to the market value of the Investments held by the branch, and the financial risks are
substantially borne by the branch.

Resirictions on assegts

Monles held in the statutory funds are subject to tha distribution and transfer restrictions and other requirements
of the LIA. '

As the branch does not have any participating business, al! profits and losses are allocated to the shareholders.
{c} Revenue recognition

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The branch recognises
revenue from non-insurance activities when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the branch and
the revenue amount can be reliably measured. The branch bases iis estimates on historical resulis, 1aking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the speciiics of each arrangement. In addition, the
following specific recognition eriteria apply to revenue streams:
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies
{c} Revenue recognition

{it Premium revenue

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for insurance confracts,
excluding stamp duties and taxes collected on behalf of third parties.

Premium for unclosed business (business written close 1o reporting date where attachment of risk is prior to
reporting date and there is insufficient information to accurately idantify the business) is brought to account based
on previous expertence with due allowancs for any changes in the pattemn of new business and renewals.

The uneamed portion of premium is recognised within unearned premium labilities in the staterment of financial
position.
(i Invesiment income

All investment income is recognised as revenua on an accruals basis. [nterest income from assets backing life
insurance llablities, which are designated &t fair vaiue through profit or loss, is recognised on a time proportion
hasis using the simple interest method, Assels are designated af fair value through profit or loss and the related
net realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in the profit or loss as investment revenue.

(d) Claims expenses

The branch's liability for ¢claims in the process of seitlement is measured as the present value of expected future
payments relaling to claims incurrad at the reporting date. The expacted future paymeants include those estimates
in relation to clalms incurred but not enough reported (IBNER's) and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR's)
based on past experience.

Claims incurred all relate to providing services, including the bearing of risk, and are accordingly treated as -
expanses in the profit or loss. Claims expenses represent total claim payments made during the year adjusied for
the mavement in the outstanding claims lability.

The claims liability is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appoinied actuary whose key
assumptions are outlined in note 6. .

(e} Other expenses
Other expenses are recognised In the profit or loss on an accruals basis.

Basis of apportionment
Apportionment of expenses has been made as follows:;

« all expenses have bsen apportioned between policy acquisition, policy maintenance and investment
management in line with the principles sel out in the Prudential Standard LPS 340 Valuation of Policy
Liabilities issued by the APRA;

« expenses, which are directly atiributable to an individual policy or product, are allocated directly to the
statutory fund within which that class of business is conducted; and

+ all indirect expenses charged to the proflt or foss are equitably appertioned to each class of business.
The apporiionment is in accordance with Division 2 Part 6 of the LIA.

Expenses incurred by the Australian head office for the administration of the branch have been allocated
according to the propaortion thak the branch's gross premium revenue bears to the tolal gress premium revenue
for the Company. -
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financtal statements

For tha year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies
() Ouiwards relnsurance premium ‘

Premium ceded to relnsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the patiem of reinsurance service
received. Accordingly, a portion of outwards reinsurance premium is treated at the reporting date as deferred
reinsurance expenze. Reinsurance recovertas on claims incurred ara recognised as revenue,

(g) Income tax

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
national Incoms tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and Habilities =attributable to temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and Yiabilities and their carrying amounts in ihe financial statements.

Deferred tex assets and lisbilities are recognised for temporary differences at the rates expecied to apply when
the assels are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively
enacied. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary
differences to measure the deferred tax asset ar liability. An exception s made for certain temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a liabillty. No deferred iax asset or liability is recognised in
relation to these temporary differences If they arcse In a transaction, other than a business combination, that at
the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax sssets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be avallable o utillse those temporary differences and lesses.

Deferred tax essets and liabilities are recognised on a gross basis, and presented net if the branch has a legally
enforceable dght 1o set off current tax assets and Habilities, and the deferred tax asseis and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilitizs are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceabie right to offset and Intends either to settle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset
and settle the liabflity simultanecusly.

The branch is subject to specific tax provisions that apply to lifs insurance businesses in New Zealand. These
rnules are designed to ensure that term insurance business is taxed on actual profits and applies to life insurance
policies Incepting on or after 1 July 2010. Term life insurance policies in force at 30 June 2010 are grandfathered
{for a limited period) 2nd taxed under the previous nies, However, an election exists whereby such policies may
be taxed under the new rules. The branch has chosen to grandfather all of its policies and the income tax
expense for the period has been calculated on this basis.

th)} Cash and cash aquivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financlal institutions, and athar short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
menths or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

() Trade and other receivables

All premiurn and other recelvables are recognlsed at the amounts receivable as these amounts are generally due
for setitement within 30 days or less, where applicable, any provision for doubtful debts. Collectability of pramium
and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basus Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off
in the period in which they are identified.

(i} Reinsurance and other recoveties receivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid and IBNR's are
recognised as revanue, Recoveries recelvable are assessed in 3 manner similar fo the assessment of the liability
far outetanding claims and palicy liablities.
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes fo the financlal statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies

{k) Classification of insurance contracts

Contracts under which the branch accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder or ancther party by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event non-specific to
the policyholder adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as insurance contracts. The
risks associated with insurance coniracts are detailed further In note 7.

() Assets backing policy llabliitles
The branch has datermined that all assets within its statutory funds are assets backing policy iabilities.
{m) Financial assets

The branch has elected to designate all its financial assets backing insurance policies at fair value through profit
or loss consistant with the provisions of NZ JAS 39 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets designated at fair value through proflt or loss and are initially recognised at falr value, excluding
transaction costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Financial assets are
subsequently measurad af fair value at each reporting date with realised and unrealised gaings and losses arising
from changes in the fair value recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Classification

() Short term deposiis

Short term deposits are carried at the face value of the amounts deposited as their carrying amounts approximate
to their fair value.

() Unilsted fixed interest securiffes

Uniisted fixed interest securities are recorded at ameunts based on valuations using ratas of interest equivalent
to the yields obtainabla on comparable investments at the end of the reporting period.

All financial Instruments are required io be further categorised under NZ IFRS 7 Financial Insiruments;
Disclosures, according to the availability of observable market inputs used in the measurement of their falr
values, which Is detailad further in note 2{f).

{n) Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the branch's non-financial assets, ather than deferred tax assets, are assessed annually
for indicators of impairment, if any such indicator exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

An Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. [mpairment losses
are recagnised In the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been re-valued, in which case the impaiment
loss is recognised as a reversal fo the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the canying amount is increased to the revised estimate of iis
recoverable amount, but so that the increasad carmying amount does not excesd the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impainment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

(0) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the branch prior to the end of
the financial year, which are unpald. The amounts are unsecured and are ususlly paid within 90 days of
recognition. .
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notas to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies

(p) Liability adequacy test

The adequacy of tha insurance coniract llabllities are evaluated sach year. The insurance contract test considars
current estimates of all contractual and relatsd cash flows, If it is determined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortfall exists, it is immediately recognised in the profit or loss.

{a) Pollcy llabllitles

Pclicy liabilifies for life insurance contracts in the statement of financial position and the increase/{decrease) in
policy lkabilitles for life insurance confracts In the proflt or loss have been calculated using the mangin on services
methodology outlined In Note 5(a).

(r) Policy acquisition costs

The actual acquisition costs incurred are recorded in the profil or loss of the branch. The value and future
recovery of these costs is assessed in determining the policy liabilities. This has the effect that acquisition costs
deferred are amortised over the perlad that they will be recovered from premiums or policy charges.

{s} Foreign currency translation and furictional currency

Functionaf and presentalion currency

ltlems included in the finandal statements of the branch are measured using the cumrency of the primary
* economic environment in which the branch cperates (the functional currency).

The financiat statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency
for the branch.

Transactions and balances

Foreign cumrency transactions are translated into the functional curréncy using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange galns and losses resulling from the setlement of such
transactions and from the franslation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and lisbilities denominated
in foreign curtencies are recognised in the prefit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign cumency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determinad.

Translation diffarences on financlal instruments camied at fair value are reported as part of the fair valus gain or
loss. :

{) New accounting standards and Interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in preparing thesa financial statements. None of
these Is expected to have a significant effect on ths financial statements of the branch, except for:

- NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the branch's 2018 financial statements and
could change the classification and measurament of financiz) assets. The branch does not plan to adopt this
standard early and the extent of the impact has not been determined.

- NZ JFRS 15 Revenugz from contracts with customers, which becomes mandatory for the Company’s 2018
financial statements, provides a new 5 step model for recognising revenue earned from a contract with a
customer and will replace the existing NZ IAS 18 Revenus. The Company does not plan to adopt this standard
early and the extent of the impact has not been determined.
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Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 Becember 2015

{continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies
{u) Rounding of amounts .

Amounts in the financial statemenis have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, or in cariain cases,
the nearest dollar,
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Halimark Life insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Directors' declaration
31 December 2015

Directors’ declaration
In tha opinion of the directors of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid New Zealand Branch (the branch):

(@) the financial staterments and notes set out on pages 2 to 31 are in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Act 1993, including:

® giving a true and fair view of tha branch’s financial pusition as at 31 December 2015 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b} the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Stendards as disclosed in note
14; and

(c} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the branch will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

—

oAnne Maree Stephenson (Chairman)

Director

Sydney
17 March 201§

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Divector)
Director

Sydney
17 March 2016
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd New
Zealand Branch

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hallmark Life Insurance
Company Ltd New Zealand Branch (“the Branch™) on pages 2 to 31. The financial statements
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015, the Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, for the Branch.

This report is made solely to the Shareholders of the Branch as a body. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Branch’s Shareholders those matters we are
required to state to them in the auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Branch’s
Shareholders as a body, for our audit work, this report or any of the opinions we have formed.

Directors’ responsibility for the Branch financial statements

The Directars are responsible on behalf of the Branch for the preparation of the Branch
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in Mew
Zealand and International Financial Reporting Standards that give a true and fair view of the
maiters to' which they relate, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of Branch financial statements that are free from material -
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Aunditor’s résponsibiiigf

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Branch financial statements based on our
- audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New
Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Branch financial
staternents are free from material misstatement. -

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Branch financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor censiders internal control relevant to the Branch’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An aundit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member 33

firm of the KPMG network of independent member

firms sffiliated with KPMG International Cooperative  Liability rnited hy & scheme approved under
{"KPMG International’), a Swigs entity. Professional Standards Legislation.
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‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our’audit opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor the firm has no other re]atmnsmp with, or inierest in, the
Branch.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements on pages 2 to 31:
& comply with generéﬂy -accéptcd accounting practice in New Zealar;d;
¢ comply with International Financ;al Reporting Standards;

s give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2015
and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Branch for tlie year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance w1th the requirements of sections lﬁ(l)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial -
Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

¢ we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

e inour opinion, proper accouniing records have been kept by Hallmark Life Insurance
Company Ltd New Zealand Branch as far as-appears from our examination of those
records.

ke
KPMG

Sydney
31 March 2016
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29 March 2016
The Board of Directors
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd
Level 4, 99 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd:
Appointed Actuary signoff of financial statements and financial condition as at
31 December 2015 for New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors

Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd (“HLIC") is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudentiai Regulatory Authority ("APRA”) and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand ("RBNZ").

On 1 March 2014, HLIC appointed me, Brendan Counsell of Ernst & Young to be HLIC's Appaointed Actuary.
The Appointed Actuary role is as described by the Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 and related
Prudential Standards and Prudential Practice Guides current at 371 December 20715, and by the

New Zealand Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship with HLIC other
than being its Appointed Actuary.

It is the responsibility of the Appointed Actuary to provide advice to the Board of a life insurer on the value
of its policy liabilities and the preparation of the actuarial information contained in its financial statements.
The Appointed Actuary must provide written advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of policy
liabilities in accordance with APRA's Prudential Standard LPS320, Actuarial and Related Matters.

As part of my responsibilities, | have produced a report on HLIC's policy liabilities and financial condition,
the Financial Condition Report (FCR), as at 31 December 2015, dated 10 March 2016. The scope of the
FCR is to provide the Board and management with an objective assessment of the financial condition of the
Australian and New Zealand business within HLIC as at 31 December 2015. The FCR identifies and
assesses the material risks facing HLIC and includes discussion of relevant risk mitigants.

I have relied upon the general completeness and accuracy of this data and information supplied by HLIC
without independent verification. However, | have reviewed the information for reasonableness and
consistency with my knowledge of the financial services industry.

The RBNZ has exempted HLIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business.
This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the Appointed
Actuary. These obligations are addressed below. Where relevant and appropriate, | have commented on
total HLIC Company level results and also separately in relation to the results of the New Zealand Branch
(Statutory Fund 2) of HLIC,

Financial Statements - HLIC Company

Sectidn 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particular: ‘

a. The Policy Liability

b. The reinsurance and other recovery asset(s) relevant to the Policy Liability, or relevant to cutstanding
claims reserves or incurred but not reported claims reserves held outside of the Policy Liability

¢. Any deferred or other tax asset relevant to the Policy Liability
d. Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue relevant to the Policy Liability

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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e. The unvested policyholder benefits liability
f.  Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the purpose of
profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review
required under Section 77. | confirm that the FCR, and its appendices, meets the requirements of section
78 of the Act, as it contains my advice regarding policy liabilities, reinsured policy liabilities, and deferred
acquisition costs (implicit in the policy liabilities}. The FCR also includes advice on IBNR and capital
requirements, which form part of the financial statements. No advice or review is required of unvested
policyholder benefits liability, as HLIC does not write any participating products.

In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HLIC financial statements has been appropriately included in
those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HLIC financial
statements.

i have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of any other
information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

Financial Statements - HLIC New Zealand Branch (Statutory Fund 2)
Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
New Zealand Branch financial statements and in particular:

a. The Paolicy Liability

b. The reinsurance and other recovery asset(s) relevant to the Policy Liability, or relevant to outstanding
claims reserves or incurred but not reported claims reserves held outside of the Policy Liability

Any deferred or other tax asset relevant to the Policy Liabitity
Any deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue relevant to the Policy Liability
The unvested policyholder benefits liability

>~ e o0

Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the purpose of
profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review
required under Section 77. | confirm that the FCR, and its appendices, meets the requirements of section
78 of the Act, as it contains my advice regarding policy liabilities, reinsured policy liabilities, and deferred
acquisition costs (implicit in the policy liabilities). The FCR also includes advice on IBNR and capital
requiremerts, which form part of the financial statements. Separate input has been provided regarding
actuarial inputs to tax calculations in New Zealand. No advice or review is required of unvested
policyholder benefits liability, as HLIC does not write any participating preducts.

In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HLIC New Zealand Branch financial statements, has been
appropriately included in those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HLIC New Zealand
Branch financial statements.

I have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of any other
information that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reporting.
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Financial Condition Report

The Appointed Actuary must prepare a Financial Condition Report which must:

a. Identify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the appointed actuary to be
aware) facing a licensed insurer that, in the appointed actuary’s opinion, pose a threat to the licensed
insurer's ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where practicable
guantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in (a)

c. Comment separately on the New Zealand business, these comments can be in line with Australian
requirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the Appointed Actuary’s opinion, the licensed insurer needs
to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the licensed
insurer's forward-looking assessment of the solvency standard and the appointed actuary's assessment
of the licensed insurer’s business plans, its enterprise risk management practices and the external
environment.

The Appointed Actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as cutlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b. Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a
whole, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of reguiatory action or
litigation.

The FCR identifies and assesses the material risks facing HLIC and includes discussion of relevant risk
mitigants. These material risks are considered at a company level and also separately for the Australian
and New Zealand business.

Throughout the FCR, key metrics and information have been separated between Statutory Fund 1
(Australia) and Statutory Fund 2 (New Zealand) so that each business can be considered separately from
the company as a whole.

HLIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2015, with excess assets of A$13.2m above
prudential capital requirements in Statutory Fund 1 and A$5.8m in Statutory Fund 2. Both statutory funds,
as well as the Shareholders Fund have exceeded prudential capital requirements over the year to 31
December 2015,

Capital requirements are expected to be met over the coming three years, and hence no reporting under

Section 24 of The Act is required. In my opinion HLIC is maintaining:

a. A solvency margin consistent with the requirements under section 21(2) (b) of the Act

b. Solvency margins for each statutory fund, both in Australian and in New Zealand, consistent with the
requirements under section 21(2) (c) of the Act

This strong position means that both statutory funds, Statutory Fund 1 and 2, of HLIC would be able to
withstand a catastrophe or extreme event similar to the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The New Zealand Branch (Statutory Fund 2) of HLIC is managed in conjunction with the Australian
business and | am not aware of any differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in
comparison with the insurer as a whole which might have implications if the two were separated.
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Yours sincerely,

Lt Ef

Brendan Counsell, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd



